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Form No. AOC-4 XBRL

  English   Hindi

 Refer instruction kit for filing the form

 All fields marked in * are mandatory

Form language

Form for filing XBRL document in respect of financial statement
and other documents with the Registrar
[Pursuant to section 137 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rule 12(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014]

 Company Information

U63030DL2020PLC372878 1 (a) *Corporate Identity Number (CIN)

150000000(b) *Authorized capital of the company as on the date of filing (in Rs.)

(c) *Number of members of the company as on the date of filing

BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED 2 (a) *Name of the company

PLOT NO. A-390 B, 2ND FLOOR,,
A-BLOCK, ROAD NO 2,
MAHIPALPUR EXTN., Mahipalpur,
New Delhi, South West Delhi,
Delhi, India, 110037

(b) *Address of registered office of the company

*****braceport-logistics.com
(c) *Email id of the company

01/04/2024
*From (DD/MM/YYYY)

 3 Financial year to which financial statements relates

*To (DD/MM/YYYY)
31/03/2025

28/05/2025

 General Information

 4 (a)*Date of Board of Directors’ meeting in which financial statements are approved

 (DD/MM/YYYY)

Adopted Financial statements (b)(i)*Nature of financial statements
      (Provisional unadopted Financial statements/Adopted Financial statements/
        Revised Financial statements u/s 130/Revised financial statements u/s 131)

 (ii) Nature of revision
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  Financial Statement   Directors' Report   Both

  (iii) Whether provisional financial statements filed earlier

  Yes   No   Not Applicable

 (v) Specify the fact and reasons for not adopting balance sheet
      in the annual general meeting (AGM)

  Yes   No   Not Applicable

  (iv) Whether adopted in adjourned AGM

 (vi) Date of adjourned AGM in which financial statements were adopted (DD/MM/YYYY)

 (vii) SRN of form INC-28

 (viii) SRN of form AOC-4/ AOC-4 XBRL

 (ix) Date of order of competent authority (DD/MM/YYYY)

26/09/2025

AGM details

5 (a) Whether annual general meeting (AGM) held

  Yes   No   Not applicable

(b) If yes, date of AGM (DD/MM/YYYY)

(c) If no, specify the fact and reasons for not holding the AGM

30/09/2025(d) Due date of AGM (DD/MM/YYYY)

  Yes   No(e) Whether any extension for AGM granted

(f) SRN of form GNL-1

(g) If yes, due date of AGM after grant of extension (DD/MM/YYYY)
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Commercial & Industrial

Financial details

6 (a) *Type of Industry

 (Commercial & Industrial/Banking Company/Insurance Company/

 Power Company/Non-banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with RBI)

7  Whether consolidated Financial Statements are also being filed   Yes   No

  AS   Ind AS(c) Whether financial statements have been  drawn on the basis of

  No  Yes(b) *Whether Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable

CAG details

8 (a) In case of a government company, whether Comptroller and Auditor

 General of India (CAG of India) has commented upon or supplemented

 the audit report under section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

  Yes   No

(b) Provide details of comment(s) or supplement(s) received from CAG of India

(c) Director's reply(s) on comments received from CAG of India

(d) Whether CAG of India has conducted supplementary or test audit under section 143   Yes   No

Brace Port Logistics Limited is a
company that specializes in
providing ocean cargo logistics
services to clients across various
sectors of the economy. The
company also provides services
such as Air Freight, Warehousing
facilities, special cargo services
such as handling cargo in foreign
countries and delivery of the
same in other foreign countries
and customs clearance services.
The company has a strong
network that serves customers in
various industries including
medical supplies,
pharmaceuticals, sports goods,

Secretarial audit

9 *Whether Secretarial Audit is applicable   Yes   No

10 *Whether detailed disclosure with respect to Director’s report Sec 134(3) is attached   Yes   No

11 Describe of state of company's affairs (in brief)
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perishables, electronics,
consumer durables, and
automotive, both in India and
globally.  During the year under
review, the Company made its
Initial Public Offer (?the Offer?)
via Fresh Issue of equity shares
comprising of 30,51,200 Equity
Shares of face value Rs. 10/- each
at a price of Rs. 80 (including a
share premium of Rs. 70),
aggregating to Rs 244096000/-
(Rs. Twenty-Four Crores Forty
Lacs Ninety-Six Thousand Only).
The Company com?pleted its IPO
successfully with part

SBN details

12 (a) Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8th November, 2016 to 30th December ,

      2016  as provided in the Table below :-

  Particulars   SBNs   Other denomination
  notes   Total

  i Closing cash in hand as on 08.11.2016

  ii (+) Permitted receipts

  iii (-) Permitted payments

  iv (-) Amount deposited in Banks

  v Closing cash in hand as on 30.12.2016

 (b) Whether the auditors have reported as to whether company had provided requisite

disclosures in its financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes

during the period from 8th November 2016 to 30th December 2016 and if so, whether these

are in accordance with the books of accounts maintained by the company

  Yes   No

RESPORTING OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CSR applicability pursuant to
Section 135

(Section 135/Report for unspent CSR amount/Not Applicable)

Attachment(s)

(a) *XBRL financial statements duly authenticated as per
      section 134 (including Board’s report, auditors’ report and
      other documents)

XBRL372878Standalone.xml
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(b) XBRL document in respect Consolidated financial
      statement XBRL372878Consolidated.xml

(c) *Copy of financial statements duly authenticated as per
section 134 (including auditors’ report and other documents)

FINANCIALS_STANDALONE -
converted_compressed.pdf

(d) Copy of consolidated financial statements duly authenticated as per

section 134 (including auditors’ report and other documents)
FINANCIAL_CONSOLIDATED -
converted_compressed.pdf

(e) Supplementary or test audit report under section 143 MAX 10 MB

(f) Details of comments of CAG if India MAX 10 MB

(g) Optional attachments (s) – if any BRACEPORT director
report_compressed -
converted.pdf

22

30/08/2025

Declaration

I am authorised by the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution number*

Dated* to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the

rules made thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto have been complied with. I

further declare that:

(1) Whatever is stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no information material to the

      subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records maintained by the  company

(2) It is confirmed that the attached XBRL document(s) are the XBRL converted copy(s) of the duly signed Financial Statements and

      all other documents which are required to be annexed or attached to the Financial Statements as required under Section 137 of

      the Companies Act, 2013. It is further confirmed that such document(s) have been prepared using the XBRL taxonomy as notified

      under Companies (Filing of documents and forms in Extensible Business  Reporting Language) Rules, 2015.

(3) All the required attachments have been completely and legibly attached to this form.

*To be digitally signed by

06501856DIN1

Director*Designation

(Director/Manager/Secretary/CEO/CFO/Liquidator/Interim Resolution Professional (IRP)/

 Resolution Professional (RP))
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0*5*1*5*
*Director identification number of the director; or  PAN of the manager or CEO or CFO or

 Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) or Resolution Professional (RP) or Liquidator; or

 Membership number of the secretary

I declare that I have been duly engaged for the purpose of certification of this form. It is hereby certified that I have gone

through the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereunder for the subject matter of this form and matters

incidental thereto and I have verified the above particulars (including attachment(s)) from the original/certified records

maintained by the Company/applicant which is subject matter of this form and found them to be true, correct and complete

and no information material to this form has been suppressed. I further certify that:

(1) The said records have been properly prepared, signed by the required officers of the Company and maintained as

      per the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and were found to be in order;

(2) It is further certified that the attached XBRL document(s) fairly present, in all material respects, the audited financial

     statements of the company, in accordance with the XBRL taxonomy as notified under Companies (Filing of documents

     and forms in Extensible Business Reporting Language) Rules, 2015

(3) All the required attachments have been completely and legibly attached to this form;

(4) It is understood that I shall be liable for action under Section 448 of the Companies Act, 2013 for wrong certification,

      if any found at any stage.

Certificate by practicing professional

21768DIN2

*To be digitally signed by

  Chartered accountant (in whole-time practice)

  Cost accountant (in whole-time practice)

  Company Secretary (in whole-time practice)

*Whether  associate or fellow

  Associate   Fellow

Membership number

2*7*8
Certificate of Practice number
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1-23459481560

28/12/2025

*For office use only:

*eForm Service request number (SRN)

*eForm filing date (DD/MM/YYYY)

*This eForm is hereby registered

*Digital signature of the authorising officer

*Date of signing (DD/MM/YYYY)

OR

This eForm has been taken on file maintained by the Registrar of Companies through electronic mode and on the basis

of statement of correctness given by the company

Note: Attention is drawn to provisions of Section 448 and 449 of the Companies Act, 2013 which provide for punishment for false
statement / certificate and punishment for false evidence respectively.
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  88688000
  33771000
  10952000
  396125000
  253676000
  89077000
  441329000
  280474000
  116298000
  113012000
  82500000
  7500000
  281699000
  56200000
  81008000
  394711000
  138700000
  88508000
  0
  0
  0
  394711000
  138700000
  88508000
  2593000
  3794000
  4897000
  0
  281000
  0
  2593000
  4075000
  4897000
  1320000
  876000
  399000
  0
  113000
  157000
  3913000
  5064000
  5453000
  1201000
  1103000
  1013000
  31343000
  128540000
  13210000
  966000
  0
  0
  33510000
  129643000
  14223000
  4531000
  4153000
  1199000
  12000
  3000
  1000
  4652000
  2911000
  6914000
  42705000
  136710000
  22337000
  46618000
  141774000
  27790000
  441329000
  280474000
  116298000
  855820000
  550043000
  9365000
  2416000
  865185000
  552459000
  730290000
  459583000
  0
  0
  18287000
  12003000
  2656000
  966000
  3193000
  1540000
  18920000
  10369000
  773346000
  484461000
  91839000
  67998000
  91839000
  67998000
  -196000
  -24000
  23981000
  17742000
  67858000
  50256000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  true
  true
  95000
  -85000
  -24000
  21000
  71000
  -64000
  7000
  0
  7000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  7000
  0
  78000
  -64000
  67936000
  50192000
  false
  false
  6.74
  6.74
  6.74
  6.74
  6.09
  6.09
  6.09
  6.09
  Income tax relating to these items
  -24000
  Income tax relating to these items
  21000
  true
  true
  2073000
  466000
  58808000
  -136420000
  -54872000
  -23003000
  -9653000
  -843000
  -96943000
  115332000
  378000
  2954000
  3193000
  1540000
  548000
  394000
  685000
  281000
  -2860000
  -400000
  6245000
  2014000
  597000
  -2000
  -104291000
  -41715000
  -12452000
  26283000
  23459000
  21768000
  -35911000
  4515000
  4450000
  2146000
  16605000
  6793000
  4576000
  1794000
  -110910000
  -19000000
  -127389000
  -26145000
  244096000
  0
  1103000
  1013000
  18788000
  0
  1050000
  466000
  -37233000
  0
  185922000
  -1479000
  22622000
  -23109000
  12000
  66000
  22634000
  -23043000
  41830000
  41421000
  18787000
  EQUITY
  15000000
  150000000
  11301200
  113012000
  11301200
  113012000
  0
  0
  11301200
  113012000
  11301200
  113012000
  113012000
  10
  0
  3051200
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  3051200
  0
  0
  0
  3051200
  11301200
  30512000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  30512000
  0
  0
  0
  30512000
  113012000
  5773900
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  5773900
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  EQUITY
  15000000
  150000000
  8250000
  82500000
  8250000
  82500000
  0
  0
  8250000
  82500000
  8250000
  82500000
  82500000
  10
  0
  750000
  0
  7500000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  7500000
  0
  0
  0
  7500000
  8250000
  7500000
  0
  75000000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  75000000
  0
  0
  0
  75000000
  82500000
  5773900
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  5773900
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  15000000
  150000000
  11301200
  113012000
  11301200
  113012000
  0
  0
  11301200
  113012000
  11301200
  113012000
  113012000
  11301200
  3051200
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  3051200
  0
  0
  0
  3051200
  30512000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  30512000
  0
  0
  0
  30512000
  5773900
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  5773900
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  15000000
  150000000
  8250000
  82500000
  8250000
  82500000
  0
  0
  8250000
  82500000
  8250000
  82500000
  82500000
  750000
  8250000
  0
  7500000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  7500000
  0
  0
  0
  7500000
  0
  75000000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  75000000
  0
  0
  0
  75000000
  5773900
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  5773900
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  true
  true
  Equity
  Skyways Air Services Ltd
  U74899DL1984PLC019666
  INDIA
  5773900
  0.5109
  Equity
  Skyways Air Services Ltd
  U74899DL1984PLC019666
  INDIA
  5773900
  0.6999
  Equity
  Sachin Arora
  AHGPA0940G
  INDIA
  1732500
  0.1533
  Equity
  Sachin Arora
  AHGPA0940G
  INDIA
  1732500
  0.21
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  true
  false
  305120000000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  213584000
  0
  37233000
  37233000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  176351000
  176351000
  176351000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  67858000
  71000
  67929000
  0
  0
  18788000
  18788000
  18788000
  0
  18788000
  0
  0
  0
  -18788000
  49141000
  105341000
  81008000
  50256000
  -64000
  50192000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  75000000
  0
  0
  -75000000
  -24808000
  56200000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  7000
  0
  7000
  7000
  7000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  105341000
  67858000
  71000
  0
  0
  18788000
  18788000
  18788000
  0
  18788000
  0
  0
  0
  -18788000
  67929000
  49141000
  281699000
  67858000
  71000
  213584000
  0
  37233000
  37233000
  18788000
  18788000
  18788000
  0
  18788000
  0
  7000
  0
  157570000
  67929000
  225499000
  281699000
  67858000
  71000
  213584000
  0
  37233000
  37233000
  18788000
  18788000
  18788000
  0
  18788000
  0
  7000
  0
  157570000
  67929000
  225499000
  281699000
  67858000
  71000
  213584000
  0
  37233000
  37233000
  18788000
  18788000
  18788000
  0
  18788000
  0
  7000
  0
  157570000
  67929000
  225499000
  81008000
  56200000
  50256000
  -64000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  75000000
  0
  0
  -75000000
  50192000
  -24808000
  81008000
  56200000
  50256000
  -64000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  75000000
  0
  0
  -75000000
  50192000
  -24808000
  81008000
  56200000
  50256000
  -64000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  75000000
  0
  0
  -75000000
  50192000
  -24808000
  81008000
  56200000
  50256000
  -64000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  75000000
  0
  0
  -75000000
  50192000
  -24808000
  2593000
  Secured by Hypothecation of respective Vehicles
  3794000
  Secured by Hypothecation of respective Vehicles
  1201000
  Current maturities of Vehicle loan
  1103000
  Current maturities of Vehicle loan
  2593000
  
 
  1201000
  
 
  2593000
  
 
  1201000
  
 
  2593000
  
 
  1201000
  
 
  3794000
  
 
  1103000
  
 
  3794000
  
 
  1103000
  
 
  3794000
  
 
  1103000
  
 
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  Straight-line method
  3 - 6 years
  false
  Straight-line method
  3 - 6 years
  false
  Straight-line method
  5 - 15 years
  false
  Straight-line method
  5 - 15 years
  false
  Straight-line method
  10 years
  false
  Straight-line method
  10 years
  false
  Straight-line method
  08 years
  false
  Straight-line method
  08 years
  false
  Straight-line method
    10 years
  false
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  false
  
 
  
 
  false
  
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
  false
  0
  0
  0
  0
  NA
  NA
  NA
  NA
  Straight-line method
  30-60 Years
  false
  false
  false
  NA
  NA
  NA
  NA
  116155000
  0
  116155000
  0
  0
  0
  172959000
  0
  172959000
  0
  0
  0
  47000
  0
  47000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  8084000
  7554000
  15560000
  Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months
  8084000
  Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months
  7554000
  6941000
  0
  0
  0
  1185000
  0
  0
  0
  173000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  139000
  184000
  Prepaid expenses
  139000
  Prepaid expenses
  184000
  0
  0
  40767000
  18150000
  41776000
  40767000
  18150000
  41776000
  654000
  637000
  54000
  180649000
  46013000
  41830000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  6661000
  753000
  3925000
  180000
  90000
  6941000
  1358000
  705000
  81747000
  32413000
  10247000
  Prepaid expenses
  617000
  Prepaid expenses
  2249000
  Balances with Government authorities
  81024000
  Balances with Government authorities
  30164000
  Other receivables
  106000
  0
  281000
  Advance from employees for issue of shares under benefit scheme
  0
  Advance from employees for issue of shares under benefit scheme
  281000
  1201000
  119000
  1320000
  0
  1320000
  876000
  0
  876000
  0
  876000
  10000
  2000
  12000
  0
  12000
  3000
  0
  3000
  0
  3000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  966000
  0
  Trade/ security deposits
  966000
  Trade/ security deposits
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  4531000
  4153000
  1199000
  Contract liabilities
  252000
  Contract liabilities
  250000
  Statutory liabilities
  2087000
  Statutory liabilities
  2418000
  Employee dues
  1884000
  Employee dues
  1485000
  Others
  308000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  false
  false
  394711000
  138700000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  855820000
  550043000
  855820000
  550043000
  0
  0
  6245000
  2014000
  6245000
  2014000
  0
  0
  6245000
  2014000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  2867000
  400000
  2867000
  400000
  253000
  2000
  3120000
  402000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  1023000
  0
  1050000
  466000
  2073000
  466000
  583000
  500000
  16775000
  11117000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  641000
  166000
  641000
  166000
  0
  0
  427000
  394000
  444000
  326000
  2022000
  1540000
  1171000
  0
  0
  0
  386000
  291000
  3334000
  805000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  176000
  679000
  1758000
  1433000
  1758000
  1433000
  348000
  515000
  364000
  372000
  2918000
  1380000
  920000
  780000
  61000
  61000
  120000
  0
  1897000
  809000
  1492000
  933000
  200000
  0
  871000
  383000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  720000
  100000
  190000
  0
  35000
  0
  40000
  0
  985000
  100000
  0
  0
  1300000
  900000
  1790000
  928000
  78000
  0
  24099000
  17766000
  24177000
  17766000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  386291000
  279095000
  469529000
  270948000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  <span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Corporate information</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited) (“hereinafter referred to the holding Company&quot; or &quot;the parent company”) was incorporated on November 07, 2020. It is a subsidiary company of Skyways Air Services Private Limited. The registered office of the Company is located at A-390 B, 2Nd Floor, A-Block, Road No 2, Mahipalpur Extn., Mahipalpur, New Delhi -110037, India, which has been shifted during the year from its earlier registered office at A-182, Mahipalpur Extension, 5, Road No 4, Mahipalpur, South Delhi, New Delhi-110037.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The Holding Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as “Group”) are principally engaged in the providing integrated logistics solutions other logistics services and logistics opeartions.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 are approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 28, 2025.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Summary of material accounting policies</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Indian Accounting standards (Ind-AS) consolidated financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.01</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Statement of compliance and basis of preparation</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation and disclosure requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III) as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting principles generally accepted in India.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The consolidated financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise stated.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.02</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Basis of presentation and preparation of separate consolidated financial statements</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for services.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 'Leases' and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value or value in use in Ind AS 36 'Impairment of Assets'.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.03</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Basis of measurement </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.04</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Current and non-current classification</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>? Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle</span><br /><span>? Held primarily for the purpose of trading</span><br /><span>? Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or</span><br /><span>? Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>All other assets are classified as non-current.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>A liability is current when:</span><br /><span>? It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle</span><br /><span>? It is held primarily for the purpose of trading</span><br /><span>? It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or</span><br /><span>? There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.05</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Recent accounting pronouncement</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. These amendments are as follows:</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(i) Lease liability in sale and leaseback transaction- Amendments to Ind AS 116:</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The amendment to Ind AS 116 introduces new guidance for seller-lessees in sale and leaseback transactions. It specifies that after the commencement date, seller-lessees must apply certain paragraphs to the right-of-use asset and lease liability, ensuring no gain or loss is recognized for the right of use retained. Additionally, the amendment includes new paragraphs in Appendix C, effective from April 1, 2024, requiring retrospective application to relevant transactions. This aims to standardize the accounting treatment and enhance clarity in financial reporting for these transactions.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(ii) Introduction of new Ind AS 117, Insurance contracts:</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The amendment introduced new Ind AS 117, which provides comprehensive guidance on the accounting for insurance contracts. This new standard is to apply for annual reporting periods starting on or after April 1, 2024. Ind AS 117 aims to enhance transparency and comparability in consolidated financial statements by standardising the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of insurance contracts.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The amendments had no significant impact on the Group’s consolodated financial statements.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.06</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span> Basis of consolidation</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The consolidated financial statements comprise the standalone financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2025. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• Exposure, or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated summary statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended March 31, 2025.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.07</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Consolidation Procedure</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(A)&nbsp;Subsidiaries:</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(a)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(b)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(c)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and Property, plant and equipment, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS - 12 &quot;Income Taxes&quot; applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the summary statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>When the proportion of the equity held by non-controlling interests changes, the Group adjust the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. The Group recognises directly in equity any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received, and attribute it to the owners of the parent.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carring amount at the date when control is transferred</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• Recognises the fair value of the consideration received</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• Recognises the fair value of any investment retained</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(B) Investment in associates and joint ventures</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement, have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Group’s investments in its associate are accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>If Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an associate and a joint venture’ in the statement of profit or loss.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment less cost to sell is recognised in profit or loss.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Group discontinue the use of equity method from the date the investment is classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 - Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations and measures the interest in associate and joint venture held for sale at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.08</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Business combination and goodwill</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Business combinations other than those under common control transactions are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. In respect to the business combination for acquisition of subsidiary, the Group has opted to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related costs are expensed in the year in which the cost are incurred and the services are received, with the exception of the costs of issuing debt or equity securities that are recognised in accordance with Ind AS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” and Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments”.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination are measured at the basis indicated as mentioned hereinafter </span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(a)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 &quot;Income Tax&quot; and Ind AS 19 &quot;Employee Benefits&quot; respectively. </span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(b)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(c)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 &quot;Non-current Assets Held for Sale&quot; and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard. </span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(d)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. </span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.09</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Functional and presentation currency</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the functional currency of the Group.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.10</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Revenue recognition</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated cutomer returns, rebates, trade discounts and other similar allowances. </span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The new revenue standard supersedes current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. This new standard requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Sale of services</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Incomes from multimodal transport services rendered are recognised on the completion of the services as per the terms of&nbsp;contract. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts offered by the Group as part of the contract.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Other income</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis with reference to effective interest rate method.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.11</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Cash flow statement</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, whereby profit/loss before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on the available information.</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.12</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. </span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.13</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Property, plant and equipment</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use. It also includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, wherever applicable. Items such as spares are capitalized when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Likewise, on initial recognition, expenditure to be incurred towards major inspections and overhauls are identified as a separate component and depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul expenditure.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Subsequent costs and disposal</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future economic benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance/life. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized net within other income/other expenses in statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Depreciation and amortisation</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method (SLM) to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, as per useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Act. Management’s assessment of independent technical evaluation/advice takes into account, inter alia, the nature of the assets, the estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement and maintenance support. The depreciation method, asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period prospectively.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on prorata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by management. The useful life is as follows:</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Assets&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp; Useful life (in years)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Computers&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp; 3 - 6 years</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Office Equipments&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp; 5 - 15 years</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Furniture &amp; Fixtures&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp; 10 years</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Electrical Equipments&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp; 10 years</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Vehicles&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;08 years</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>An item of property, plant and equipment is dereocgnised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year and changes in estimates, if any, are accounted for prospectively.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.14</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Impairment of tangible and intangible assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of all of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication based on internal/ external factors that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Borrowing costs directly relating to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying capital project under construction are capitalised and added to the project cost during construction until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their intended use i.e. when they are capable of commercial production. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the Group during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is interrupted.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.15</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Employee benefits</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensated absences.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Defined contribution plans</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Group's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Defined benefit plans</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Group has a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to employees who have completed five years or more of service at retirement, disability or termination of employment, being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Group.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Short-term employee benefits</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under :</span><br /><span>(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future </span><br /><span>&nbsp;&nbsp; compensated absences; and</span><br /><span>(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Long-term employee benefits</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to statement of profit and loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past service cost.</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.16</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Leases</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Group as a lessee</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Group’s lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for land and building. The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>i)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Right-of-use assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the building (i.e. 30 and 60 years)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 'Impairment of non-financial assets'.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>ii)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Lease Liabilities</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>(iii)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets</span><br /><span>The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.17</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Earnings per share</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing&nbsp;the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate. </span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.18</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Taxes on income</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates items recognised directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Current income tax</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit&nbsp;before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Group:</span><br /><span>i) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and</span><br /><span>ii) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Deferred tax</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Deferred tax is provided using the Balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Current and deferred tax for the year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprenhensive income or directly in equity respectively.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.19</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Provisions and contingencies</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Group. There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as Contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the consolidated financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Group involved, it is not expected that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.20</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial instruments </span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. </span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. </span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial assets </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Classification of financial assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss (except for debt investments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>•&nbsp;&nbsp;the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>•&nbsp;&nbsp;the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amortised cost and effective interest method</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Impairment of financial assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Derecognition of financial assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities and equity instruments</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Classification as debt or equity</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Equity instruments</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Group entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group, and commitments issued by the Group to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities at FVTPL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument. </span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>• the financial liability forms part of a Group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Group is provided internally on that basis; or</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognised in statement of profit and loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other gains and losses' line item.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in statement of profit and loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognised in statement of profit and loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to statement of profit and loss. </span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Group that are designated by the Group as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in statement of profit and loss. </span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'finance costs' line item.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Foreign exchange gains and losses</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in the statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Derecognition of financial liabilities</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Derivative financial intruments</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Group uses derivative forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.21</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Operating cycle</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current non-current classification of assets and liabilities.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.22</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements are included in the following accounting policies and/or notes:</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Critical estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The folowing are the critical judgements, apart from those estimations that the management has made in the process of applying the Group Accounting Policies and that have most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Provisions and contingencies</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects are not recognized in the balance sheet. In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Group. Guarantees are also provided in the normal course of business. There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the consolidated financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Group involved, it is not expected that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability. </span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Fair value measurement of financial instruments</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted price in active markets are available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Impairment of assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>In assessing the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for impairment, factors leading to significant reduction in profits such as changes in commodity prices, the Group’s business plans and changes in regulatory environment are taken into consideration. The carrying value of the assets of a cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory climates, long-term plan, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the abovementioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as disclosed above are depreciated over their useful economic lives. Management reviews the useful economic lives at least once a year and any changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively and hence the asset carrying values. The Group also reviews its property, plant and equipment, for possible impairment if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that carrying values of the assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment for impairment, factors leading to significant reduction in profits such as changes in commodity prices, the Group’s business plans and changes in regulatory environment are taken into consideration.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The carrying value of the assets of a cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory climates, long-term plan, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Contingencies and commitments</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and other claims against the Group. A tax provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Where it is management’s assessment that the outcome cannot be reliably quantified or is uncertain the claims are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the likelihood of an adverse outcome is remote. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the consolidated financial statements.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>When considering the classification of a legal or tax cases as probable, possible or remote there is judgement involved. This pertains to the application of the legislation, which in certain cases is based upon management’s interpretation of country specific tax.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.23</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Key sources of estimation uncertaininty</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(a)</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Fair value measurements and valuation processes</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The Board of directors of the Group has designated the Chief Financial Officer of the Company determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements. </span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(b)</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Taxes</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The firm establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing&nbsp;in the respective domicile of the companies.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(c)</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Impairment of Financial assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the firm uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on firm's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(d)</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Impairment of non-Financial assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The firm assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the firm estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or firm's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.24</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Standards issued but not effective</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>There are no standards that are issued but not yet effective on March 31, 2025.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
</span>

  <span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation and disclosure requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III) as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting principles generally accepted in India.<br />
<br />
The consolidated financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise stated.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
</span>

  <span>
<span>NA</span>
</span>

  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  true
  true
  Skyways Air Services Ltd
  INDIA
  U74899DL1984PLC019666
  Sale of service, Purchase of service,  Reimbursement paid, Rent Expense, Interest on Corporate Guarantee, Dividend paid
  Holding company
  0
  94673000
  425000
  12768000
  0
  0
  Skyways Air Services Ltd
  INDIA
  U74899DL1984PLC019666
  Sale of service, Purchase of service,  Reimbursement paid, Rent Expense, Interest on Corporate Guarantee, Issue of Bonus Shares, Miscellaneous Expense
  Holding company
  0
  155243000
  16490000
  1694000
  52490000
  0
  Surgeport Logistics Private Limited
  INDIA
  U74999DL2017PTC319339
  Sale of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  7991000
  0
  Surgeport Logistics Private Limited
  INDIA
  U74999DL2017PTC319339
  Sale of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  46624000
  0
  Forin Container Line Private Limited
  INDIA
  U63000DL2021PTC377266
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  35956000
  0
  0
  Forin Container Line Private Limited
  INDIA
  U63000DL2021PTC377266
  Sale of service, Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  21286000
  147000
  0
  Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC UAE
  UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
  Sale of service, Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  2552000
  156191000
  0
  Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC UAE
  UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
  Sale of service, Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  137000
  61038000
  0
  Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong)
  HONG KONG
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  626000
  0
  0
  Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong)
  HONG KONG
  Sale of service, Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  15458000
  12533000
  0
  Rahat Continental Private Limited
  INDIA
  U60210HR1999PTC055940
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  505000
  0
  0
  Rahat Continental Private Limited
  INDIA
  U60210HR1999PTC055940
  Sale of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  0
  25791000
  0
  Bolt Freight INC
  JAMAICA
  Sale of service, Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  1677000
  1756000
  0
  Bolt Freight INC
  JAMAICA
  Sale of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  0
  509000
  0
  Phantom Road Express Private Limited                   
  INDIA
  U74140DL2015PTC276399
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  2763000
  0
  Phantom Road Express Private Limited                   
  INDIA
  U74140DL2015PTC276399
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  1452000
  0
  Skart Global Express Private Limited
  INDIA
  U64120DL2019PTC352410
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  241000
  0
  Skart Global Express Private Limited
  INDIA
  U64120DL2019PTC352410
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  1304000
  0
  RIV Worldwide Limited
  LAO PEOPLE'S DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  1497000
  0
  RIV Worldwide Limited
  LAO PEOPLE'S DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  273000
  0
  Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (Vietnam)
  VIET NAM
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  296000
  0
  Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (Vietnam)
  VIET NAM
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  1976000
  0
  Pradhaan Air Express Private Limited
  INDIA
  U62100DL2021PTC379298
  Purchase of service
  Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
  0
  148599000
  0
  Pradhaan Air Express Private Limited
  INDIA
  U62100DL2021PTC379298
  Purchase of service
  Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
  0
  42742000
  0
  Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited
  INDIA
  U72300DL2004PTC128165
  Purchase of Intangible Assets, Professional Charges 
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  5091000
  337000
  0
  Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited
  INDIA
  U72300DL2004PTC128165
  Software maintenance, Purchase of Intangible Assets, Professional Charges 
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  289000
  105000
  0
  Sachin Arora
  INDIA
  AHGPA0940G
  Reimbursement paid,Remuneration paid,Dividend paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  8250000
  0
  0
  Sachin Arora
  INDIA
  AHGPA0940G
  Reimbursement paid,Remuneration paid,Issue of Bonus Shares
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  3732000
  15750000
  0
  Rishi Trehan
  INDIA
  AFVPT9976Q
  Reimbursement paid, Remuneration paid, Dividend paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  4365000
  0
  0
  Rishi Trehan
  INDIA
  AFVPT9976Q
  Reimbursement paid, Remuneration paid, Issue of Bonus Shares
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  3301000
  2250000
  0
  Lata Gul Hariramani
  INDIA
  AATPH1945A
  Rent Expense
  Relatives of Key management personnel
  0
  129000
  0
  Lata Gul Hariramani
  INDIA
  AATPH1945A
  Rent Expense
  Relatives of Key management personnel
  0
  80000
  0
  Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair
  INDIA
  ADNPN8593K
  Remuneration paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  1626000
  0
  Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair
  INDIA
  ADNPN8593K
  Remuneration paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  1087000
  0
  Megha Verma
  INDIA
  BLMPV9769B
  Remuneration paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  752000
  0
  Megha Verma
  INDIA
  BLMPV9769B
  Remuneration paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  263000
  0
  SLS Retail Supermart Private Limited
  INDIA
  U74999DL2018PTC342341
  Miscellaneous Expense, Advertisement and Business Promotion
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  18000
  0
  SLS Retail Supermart Private Limited
  INDIA
  U74999DL2018PTC342341
  Miscellaneous Expense
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  41000
  0
  Yashpal Sharma
  INDIA
  AANPS5778G
  Dividend paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  169000
  0
  Skyways SLS Logistik GMBH
  GERMANY
  Sale of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  9691000
  0
  Tarun Sharma
  INDIA
  BCZPS9098E
  Dividend paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  169000
  0
  Zeal Global Services Limited
  INDIA
  L74950DL2014PLC264849
  Sale of service, Purchase of service
  Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
  0
  36134000
  25160000
  0
  Himanshu Chhabra
  INDIA
  ADZPC1926H
  Dividend paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  169000
  0
  Love Kumar Trehan
  INDIA
  EJOPK1468R
  Remuneration paid
  Relatives of Key management personnel
  0
  188000
  0
  Rohit Sehgal
  INDIA
  AATPS8800K
  Dividend paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  169000
  0
  Tejinder Kaur
  INDIA
  BVJPK8713M
  Remuneration paid
  Relatives of Key management personnel
  0
  188000
  0
  Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (THB)
  THAILAND
  Purchase of service
  Others
  0
  196000
  0
  Sarla Arora
  INDIA
  AMAPA7884L
  Remuneration paid
  Relatives of Key management personnel
  0
  100000
  0
  Deepak Sonthaliya
  INDIA
  CBTPS5293P
  Reimbursement paid, Director Sitting Fees
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  44000
  0
  0
  Yashpal Sharma
  INDIA
  AANPS5778G
  Issue of Bonus Shares
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  0
  770000
  0
  Gunjan Kayastha Agarwal
  INDIA
  AMKPK1812E
  Reimbursement paid, Director Sitting Fees
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  44000
  0
  0
  Tarun Sharma
  INDIA
  BCZPS9098E
  Issue of Bonus Shares
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  0
  770000
  0
  Megha Aggarwal
  INDIA
  AJLPA0410G
  Reimbursement paid, Director Sitting Fees
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  44000
  0
  0
  Himanshu Chhabra
  INDIA
  ADZPC1926H
  Issue of Bonus Shares
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  0
  770000
  0
  Rohit Sehgal
  INDIA
  AATPS8800K
  Issue of Bonus Shares
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  770000
  0
  SLS Logistik Academy Private Limited
  INDIA
  U74999DL2019PTC347122
  Miscellaneous Expense
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  5000
  0
  Daya Nand Arora
  INDIA
  AARPA1858P
  Professional Charges
  Relatives of Key management personnel
  0
  375000
  0
  false
  false
  true
  true
  Section 2(87)(ii)
  Section 2(87)(ii)
  true
  true
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  false
  false
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  116155000
  116155000
  Trade receivables
  172959000
  172959000
  Trade receivables
  41421000
  41421000
  Cash and cash equivalents
  18787000
  18787000
  Cash and cash equivalents
  139228000
  139228000
  Other Bank balances
  27226000
  27226000
  Other Bank balances
  47000
  47000
  Loans
  0
  0
  Loans
  18670000
  18670000
  Other financial assets
  8487000
  8487000
  Other financial assets
  116155000
  116155000
  
 
  199366000
  199366000
  
 
  199366000
  199366000
  
 
  172959000
  172959000
  
 
  54500000
  54500000
  
 
  54500000
  54500000
  
 
  36103000
  36103000
  133718000
  133718000
  36103000
  36103000
  133718000
  133718000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  true
  true
  Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank balances
  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
  0
  0
  46013000
  The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current financial assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
  NA
  Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank balances
  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
  41830000
  4183000
  4183000
  46013000
  The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current financial assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
  NA
  Trade receivables, Loans and Other financial assets
   In the absence of observable inputs to measure fair value the assets and liabilities have been classified as level 3. The Group has not given further disclosures since the amount involved is not material. The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities having short term maturities recognised in the financial statement approximates their fair values.
  0
  0
  181446000
  The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current financial assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
  NA
  Trade receivables, Loans and Other financial assets
   In the absence of observable inputs to measure fair value the assets and liabilities have been classified as level 3. The Group has not given further disclosures since the amount involved is not material. The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities having short term maturities recognised in the financial statement approximates their fair values.
  51855000
  129591000
  129591000
  181446000
  The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current financial assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
  NA
  46013000
  
 
  
 
  0
  0
  
 
  
 
  181446000
  
 
  
 
  0
  0
  
 
  
 
  41830000
  46013000
  
 
  
 
  4183000
  4183000
  
 
  
 
  51855000
  181446000
  
 
  
 
  129591000
  129591000
  
 
  
 
  true
  true
  Borrowings, Trade payables and Other financial liabilities
  In the absence of observable inputs to measure fair value the assets and liabilities have been classified as level 3. The Group has not given further disclosures since the amount involved is not material. The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities having short term maturities recognised in the financial statement approximates their fair values.
  0
  0
  133718000
  The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current financial assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
  NA
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<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated cutomer returns, rebates, trade discounts and other similar allowances. <br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The new revenue standard supersedes current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. This new standard requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
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</td>
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<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Incomes from multimodal transport services rendered are recognised on the completion of the services as per the terms of contract. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts offered by the Group as part of the contract.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
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<p><span>Employee benefits</span></p>
</td>
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<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensated absences.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
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<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The Group's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
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</td>
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<td>
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</td>
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</td>
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<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The Group has a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to employees who have completed five years or more of service at retirement, disability or termination of employment, being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Group.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
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</td>
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</td>
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<p><span>Short-term employee benefits</span></p>
</td>
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</td>
<td>
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</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under :</span><br /><span>(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future </span><br /><span>&nbsp;&nbsp; compensated absences; and</span><br /><span>(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Long-term employee benefits</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to statement of profit and loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past service cost.</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
</span>
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<span><br />
Independent Auditors’ Report<br />
To the Members of BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED (formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)<br />
<br />
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements <br />
Opinion<br />
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Brace Port Logistics Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (together referred as “Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the Consolidated Cash Flow and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated financial statements”). <br />
<br />
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, their consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.<br />
<br />
Basis for Opinion<br />
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements section of our report. <br />
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.<br />
Key Audit Matters <br />
<br />
Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. <br />
<br />
We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
Other Information<br />
<br />
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance Report and Shareholder’s Information but does not include the Consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.<br />
Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.<br />
In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.<br />
Responsibilities of Management for The Consolidated Financial Statements<br />
<br />
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.<br />
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.<br />
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective companies.<br />
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements<br />
<br />
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial statements.<br />
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:<br />
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatements resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.<br />
<br />
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.<br />
<br />
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.<br />
<br />
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.<br />
<br />
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.<br />
<br />
Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities or the business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities or business activities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the entities or business activities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.<br />
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.</span><br /><span><br />
<br />
We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the Consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.<br />
<br />
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.<br />
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulations precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communications.<br />
<br />
Other Matters<br />
<br />
We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of 1 subsidiary, whose financial statements include total assets of Nil as at March 31, 2025, and total revenues of Nil, total net (loss) after tax of INR 7.53 lacs, total comprehensive (loss) of INR 7.53 lacs and net cash inflows/(outflows) of Nil for the year ended on that date. These financial statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. <br />
<br />
The above subsidiary is located outside India whose financial statements and other financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in its respective country and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective country. The Holding Company’s management has converted the financial statements of such subsidiary located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in its respective country to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiary located outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by the management of the Holding Company and audited by us.<br />
<br />
Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditor.<br />
<br />
Report on Other Legal and RegulatoryRequirements<br />
<br />
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”), issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, based on our audit of the Holding Company, company incorporated in India, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.<br />
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: <br />
a) We / other auditors whose reports we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. <br />
<br />
<br />
b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports of the other auditors, except for the matters stated in the paragraph (j) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g). <br />
c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements. <br />
<br />
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;<br />
<br />
e) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).<br />
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, none of the directors of the Group’s companies, is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. <br />
f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, incorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”.<br />
g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.<br />
g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: <br />
(i) The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations which impact the consolidated financial position in its Consolidated financial statements – Refer note 29 to the consolidated financial statements;<br />
(ii) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable;<br />
(iii) The Group is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund - Refer note 36 to the consolidated financial statements;<br />
(iv) a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, has represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entities, including entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.<br />
b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, has represented to us that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries and <br />
c) Based on such audit procedures that the we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances on the Holding Company, which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the representations made to us under sub-clause (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statements. <br />
(v) The interim dividend, declared and paid by the Holding Company during the year is in accordance with section 123, as applicable. <br />
(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks for the Holding Company, company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have used accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions <br />
Also, in respect of software used in maintaining payroll records, as described in note 42 to the Standalone Financial Statements, in absence of service organisation controls report in respect of audit trail, we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature of the underlying database was enabled and operated throughout the year.<br />
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of accounting software except that in absence of service organisation controls report, we are unable to comment on the same in respect of the software used to maintain payroll records.<br />
<br />
Additionally, the audit trail to the extent it was enabled has been preserved by the Holding Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention except that in absence of service organisation controls report, we are unable to comment on the same in respect of the software used to maintain payroll records.<br />
<br />
<br />
For </span><br /><span><br />
Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur &amp; Co.<br />
Chartered Accountants<br />
ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
per Mohit Gupta<br />
Partner<br />
Membership Number: 528337<br />
UDIN: 25528337BMLNAG5204<br />
<br />
New Delhi           <br />
May 28, 2025<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
Annexure ‘A’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of even date<br />
<br />
Re: Brace Port Logistics Limited (‘the Company’)<br />
<br />
(XXI) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are:<br />
</span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>S. No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>CIN</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Holding company/Subsidiary</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Clause number of the CARO report which is qualified or is adverse</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Brace Port Logistics Limited</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>U63030DL2020PLC372878</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Holding Company</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(ii) (b)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
<br />
For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur &amp; Co.<br />
Chartered Accountants<br />
ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
per Mohit Gupta<br />
Partner<br />
Membership Number: 528337<br />
UDIN: 25528337BMLNAG5204<br />
<br />
New Delhi           <br />
May 28, 2025<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Brace Port Logistics Limited<br />
<br />
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)<br />
<br />
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Brace Port Logistics Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.<br />
<br />
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls<br />
<br />
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.<br />
<br />
Auditor’s Responsibility<br />
<br />
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.<br />
<br />
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.<br />
<br />
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements<br />
<br />
A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.<br />
<br />
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements<br />
<br />
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.<br />
<br />
Opinion<br />
<br />
In our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.<br />
<br />
<br />
For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur &amp; Co.<br />
Chartered Accountants<br />
ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
per Mohit Gupta<br />
Partner<br />
Membership Number: 528337<br />
UDIN: 25528337BMLNAG5204<br />
<br />
New Delhi           <br />
May 28, 2025</span></p>
</span>
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<p><span>Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited) (“hereinafter referred to the Company”) was incorporated on November 07, 2020. It is a subsidiary company of Skyways Air Services Limited. The registered office of the Company is located at A-390 B, 2Nd Floor, A-Block, Road No 2, Mahipalpur Extn., Mahipalpur, New Delhi -110037, India, which has been shifted during the year from its earlier registered office at A-182, Mahipalpur Extension, 5, Road No 4, Mahipalpur, South Delhi, New Delhi-110037.<br />
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The company is engaged in providing integrated logistics solutions other specialised logistics services and logistics operations.</span></p>
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<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation and disclosure requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III) as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting principles generally accepted in India.<br />
<br />
The standalone financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise stated.</span></p>
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<p><span>The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.<br />
<br />
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for services.<br />
<br />
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these standalone financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 'Leases' and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value or value in use in Ind AS 36 'Impairment of Assets'.<br />
<br />
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:</span></p>
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<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.03</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Basis of measurement</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.04</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Current and non-current classification</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>? Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle<br />
? Held primarily for the purpose of trading<br />
? Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or<br />
? Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>All other assets are classified as non-current.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>A liability is current when:<br />
? It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle<br />
? It is held primarily for the purpose of trading<br />
? It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or<br />
? There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All other assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.05</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Recent accounting pronouncement</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. These amendments are as follows:</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(i) Lease liability in sale and leaseback transaction- Amendments to Ind AS 116:</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The amendment to Ind AS 116 introduces new guidance for seller-lessees in sale and leaseback transactions. It specifies that after the commencement date, seller-lessees must apply certain paragraphs to the right-of-use asset and lease liability, ensuring no gain or loss is recognized for the right of use retained. Additionally, the amendment includes new paragraphs in Appendix C, effective from April 1, 2024, requiring retrospective application to relevant transactions. This aims to standardize the accounting treatment and enhance clarity in financial reporting for these transactions.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(ii) Introduction of new Ind AS 117, Insurance contracts:</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The amendment introduced new Ind AS 117, which provides comprehensive guidance on the accounting for insurance contracts. This new standard is to apply for annual reporting periods starting on or after April 1, 2024. Ind AS 117 aims to enhance transparency and comparability in standalone financial statements by standardising the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of insurance contracts.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The amendments had no significant impact on the Company’s standalone financial statements.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.06</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Functional and presentation currency<br />
<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the functional currency of the Company.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.07</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Revenue recognition</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated cutomer returns, rebates, trade discounts and other similar allowances. <br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The new revenue standard supersedes current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. This new standard requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Sale of services</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Incomes from multimodal transport services rendered are recognised on the completion of the services as per the terms of contract. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts offered by the Company as part of the contract.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Other income</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis with reference to effective interest rate method.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.08</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Cash flow statement</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash Flows”, whereby profit/loss before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.09</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.10</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Property, plant and equipment</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.<br />
<br />
The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use. It also includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, wherever applicable. Items such as spares are capitalized when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment.<br />
<br />
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Likewise, on initial recognition, expenditure to be incurred towards major inspections and overhauls are identified as a separate component and depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul expenditure.<br />
<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Subsequent costs and disposal<br />
<br />
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future economic benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance/life. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized net within other income/other expenses in statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Depreciation and amortisation</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method (SLM) to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, as per useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Act. Management’s assessment of independent technical evaluation/advice takes into account, inter alia, the nature of the assets, the estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement and maintenance support. The depreciation method, asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period prospectively.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on prorata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by management. The useful life is as follows:<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Assets                                          Useful life (in years)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Computers                                      3 - 6 years</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Office Equipments                                 5 - 15 years</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Furniture &amp; Fixtures                                10 years</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Electrical Equipments                               10 years</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Vehicles                                        08 years</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>An item of property, plant and equipment is dereocgnised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year and changes in estimates, if any, are accounted for prospectively.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.11</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Impairment of tangible and intangible assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of all of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication based on internal/ external factors that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Borrowing costs directly relating to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying capital project under construction are capitalised and added to the project cost during construction until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their intended use i.e. when they are capable of commercial production. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is interrupted.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.12</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Employee benefits</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensated absences.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Defined contribution plans</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Defined benefit plans</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Company has a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to employees who have completed five years or more of service at retirement, disability or termination of employment, being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Company.<br />
<br />
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.<br />
<br />
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Short-term employee benefits</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service. <br />
<br />
The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under :<br />
(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future <br />
   compensated absences; and<br />
(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Long-term employee benefits</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to statement of profit and loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past service cost.<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.13</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Leases</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Company as a lessee</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Company’s lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for land and building. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>i)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Right-of-use assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the building (i.e. 30 and 60 years)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 'Impairment of non-financial assets'.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>ii)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Lease Liabilities</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>(iii)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets<br />
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.14</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Earnings per share</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.15</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Taxes on income</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates items recognised directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Current income tax</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:<br />
i) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and<br />
ii) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Deferred tax</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Deferred tax is provided using the Balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Current and deferred tax for the year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprenhensive income or directly in equity respectively.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.16</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Provisions and contingencies</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the standalone financial statements.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as Contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the standalone financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company involved, it is not expected that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability.<br />
<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the standalone financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.17</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial instruments <br />
<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Classification of financial assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss (except for debt investments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>•  the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>•  the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amortised cost and effective interest method</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.<br />
<br />
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.<br />
<br />
Changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.<br />
<br />
Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Impairment of financial assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Derecognition of financial assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities and equity instruments</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Classification as debt or equity</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Equity instruments</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL. However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commitments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities at FVTPL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or<br />
<br />
• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or <br />
<br />
• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or <br />
<br />
• the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Company is provided internally on that basis; or<br />
<br />
• it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognised in statement of profit and loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other gains and losses' line item.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in statement of profit and loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognised in statement of profit and loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'finance costs' line item.<br />
<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Foreign exchange gains and losses</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in the statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Derecognition of financial liabilities</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in statement of profit and loss.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Derivative financial intruments</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Company uses derivative forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.18</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Operating cycle</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current non-current classification of assets and liabilities.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.19</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The preparation of these standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these standalone financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions. <br />
<br />
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.<br />
<br />
In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements are included in the following accounting policies and/or notes:<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Critical estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies<br />
<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The folowing are the critical judgements, apart from those estimations that the management has made in the process pf applying the Company Accounting Policies and that have most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Provisions and contingencies<br />
<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects are not recognized in the balance sheet. In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company. Guarantees are also provided in the normal course of business. There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the standalone financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company involved, it is not expected that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Fair value measurement of financial instruments<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted price in active markets are available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Impairment of assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>In assessing the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for impairment, factors leading to significant reduction in profits such as changes in commodity prices, the Company’s business plans and changes in regulatory environment are taken into consideration. The carrying value of the assets of a cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory climates, long-term plan, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the abovementioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as disclosed above are depreciated over their useful economic lives. Management reviews the useful economic lives at least once a year and any changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively and hence the asset carrying values. The Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment, for possible impairment if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that carrying values of the assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment for impairment, factors leading to significant reduction in profits such as changes in commodity prices, the Company’s business plans and changes in regulatory environment are taken into consideration.<br />
<br />
The carrying value of the assets of a cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory climates, long-term plan, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Contingencies and commitments</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and other claims against the Company. A tax provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation.<br />
<br />
Where it is management’s assessment that the outcome cannot be reliably quantified or is uncertain the claims are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the likelihood of an adverse outcome is remote. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the standalone financial statements.<br />
<br />
When considering the classification of a legal or tax cases as probable, possible or remote there is judgement involved. This pertains to the application of the legislation, which in certain cases is based upon management’s interpretation of country specific tax.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.20</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Key sources of estimation uncertaininty</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(a)<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Fair value measurements and valuation processes</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The Board of directors of the Company has designated the Chief Financial Officer of the Company determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(b)<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Taxes</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The firm establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(c)<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Impairment of Financial assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the firm uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on firm's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(d)<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Impairment of non-Financial assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The firm assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the firm estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or firm's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.21</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Standards issued but not effective</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>There are no standards that are issued but not yet effective on March 31, 2025.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
</span>

  <span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation and disclosure requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III) as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting principles generally accepted in India.<br />
<br />
The standalone financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise stated.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
</span>

  <span>
<span>NA </span>
</span>

  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  true
  true
  Skyways Air Services Ltd
  INDIA
  U74899DL1984PLC019666
  Sale of service, Skyways Air Services Private Limited, Reimbursement paid, Dividend paid, Rent Expense, Interest on Corporate Guarantee
  Holding company
  0
  94673000
  425000
  12768000
  0
  0
  Skyways Air Services Ltd    
  INDIA
  U74899DL1984PLC019666
  Sale of service, Skyways Air Services Private Limited, Reimbursement paid,  Rent Expense, Interest on Corporate Guarantee, Issue of Bonus Shares, Miscellaneous Expense
  Holding company
  0
  155243000
  16490000
  1694000
  52490000
  0
  Surgeport Logistics Private Limited
  INDIA
  U74999DL2017PTC319339
  Sale of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  7991000
  0
  Surgeport Logistics Private Limited
  INDIA
  U74999DL2017PTC319339
  Sale of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  46624000
  0
  Forin Container Line Private Limited
  INDIA
  U63000DL2021PTC377266
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  35956000
  0
  0
  Forin Container Line Private Limited
  INDIA
  U63000DL2021PTC377266
  Purchase of service, Sale of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  21286000
  147000
  0
  Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC UAE
  UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
  Sale of service, Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  2552000
  156191000
  0
  Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC UAE
  UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
  Sale of service, Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  137000
  61038000
  0
  Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong)
  HONG KONG
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  626000
  0
  0
  Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong)
  HONG KONG
  Purchase of service, Sale of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  15458000
  12533000
  0
  Rahat Continental Private Limited
  INDIA
  U60210HR1999PTC055940
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  505000
  0
  0
  Rahat Continental Private Limited
  INDIA
  U60210HR1999PTC055940
  Sale of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  0
  25791000
  0
  Bolt Freight INC
  JAMAICA
  Sale of service, Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  1677000
  1756000
  0
  Bolt Freight INC
  JAMAICA
  Sale of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  0
  509000
  0
  Phantom Road Express Private Limited 
  INDIA
  U74140DL2015PTC276399
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  2763000
  0
  Phantom Road Express Private Limited                   
  INDIA
  U74140DL2015PTC276399
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  1452000
  0
  Skart Global Express Private Limited
  INDIA
  U64120DL2019PTC352410
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  241000
  0
  Skart Global Express Private Limited
  INDIA
  U64120DL2019PTC352410
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  1304000
  0
  Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (Vietnam)
  VIET NAM
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  296000
  0
  Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (Vietnam)
  VIET NAM
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  1976000
  0
  RIV Worldwide Limited
  LAO PEOPLE'S DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  1497000
  0
  RIV Worldwide Limited
  LAO PEOPLE'S DEMOCRATIC REPUBLIC
  Purchase of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  273000
  0
  Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (THB)
  THAILAND
  Purchase of service
  Others
  0
  196000
  0
  Pradhaan Air Express Private Limited
  INDIA
  U62100DL2021PTC379298
  Purchase of service
  Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
  0
  42742000
  0
  Pradhaan Air Express Private Limited
  INDIA
  U62100DL2021PTC379298
  Purchase of service
  Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
  0
  0
  148599000
  0
  0
  Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited
  INDIA
  U72300DL2004PTC128165
  Purchase of Intangible Assets, Professional Charges,   Software maintenance 
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  289000
  0
  105000
  0
  Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited
  INDIA
  U72300DL2004PTC128165
  Purchase of Intangible Assets, Professional Charges
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  5091000
  337000
  0
  SLS Retail Supermart Private Limited
  INDIA
  U74999DL2018PTC342341
  Miscellaneous Expense 
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  0
  41000
  0
  Braceport Logistics L.L.C. - FZ
  UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
  Reimbursement paid
  Subsidiary company
  0
  741000
  0
  Sachin Arora
  INDIA
  AHGPA0940G
  Reimbursement paid, Remuneration paid, Issue of Bonus Shares
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  3732000
  15750000
  0
  SLS Retail Supermart Private Limited
  INDIA
  U74999DL2018PTC342341
  Miscellaneous Expense, Advertisement and Business Promotion
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  18000
  0
  Rishi Trehan
  INDIA
  AFVPT9976Q
  Reimbursement paid, Remuneration paid, Issue of Bonus Shares
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  3301000
  2250000
  0
  Sachin Arora
  INDIA
  AHGPA0940G
  Reimbursement paid, Dividend paid, Remuneration paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  8250000
  0
  0
  Tarun Sharma
  INDIA
  BCZPS9098E
  Issue of Bonus Shares
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  0
  770000
  0
  Rishi Trehan
  INDIA
  AFVPT9976Q
  Reimbursement paid, Dividend paid, Remuneration paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  4365000
  0
  0
  Yashpal Sharma
  INDIA
  AANPS5778G
  Issue of Bonus Shares
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  0
  770000
  0
  Tarun Sharma
  INDIA
  BCZPS9098E
  Dividend paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  169000
  0
  0
  Himanshu Chhabra
  INDIA
  ADZPC1926H
  Issue of Bonus Shares
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  0
  770000
  0
  Yashpal Sharma
  INDIA
  AANPS5778G
  Dividend paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  169000
  0
  0
  Rohit Sehgal
  INDIA
  AATPS8800K
  Issue of Bonus Shares
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  0
  770000
  0
  Deepak Sonthaliya
  INDIA
  CBTPS5293P
  Reimbursement paid, Director Sitting Fees
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  44000
  0
  Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair
  INDIA
  ADNPN8593K
  Remuneration paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  1087000
  0
  Gunjan Kayastha Agarwal
  INDIA
  AMKPK1812E
  Reimbursement paid, Director Sitting Fees
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  44000
  0
  Megha Verma
  INDIA
  BLMPV9769B
  Remuneration paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  263000
  0
  Megha Aggarwal
  INDIA
  AJLPA0410G
  Reimbursement paid, Director Sitting Fees
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  44000
  0
  Zeal Global Services Limited
  INDIA
  L74950DL2014PLC264849
  Sale of service, Purchase of service
  Enterprises which are owned, or have significant influence of or are partners with Key management personnel and their relatives
  0
  36134000
  25160000
  0
  Himanshu Chhabra
  INDIA
  ADZPC1926H
  Dividend paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  169000
  0
  Skyways SLS Logistik GMBH
  GERMANY
  Sale of service
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  9691000
  0
  Rohit Sehgal
  INDIA
  AATPS8800K
  Dividend paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  169000
  0
  Lata Gul Hariramani
  INDIA
  AATPH1945A
  Rent Expense
  Relatives of Key management personnel
  0
  80000
  0
  Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair
  INDIA
  ADNPN8593K
  Remuneration paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  1626000
  0
  Love Kumar Trehan
  INDIA
  EJOPK1468R
  Remuneration paid
  Relatives of Key management personnel
  0
  188000
  0
  Megha Verma
  INDIA
  BLMPV9769B
  Remuneration paid
  Key Management Personnel
  0
  752000
  0
  Tejinder Kaur
  INDIA
  BVJPK8713M
  Remuneration paid
  Relatives of Key management personnel
  0
  188000
  0
  Lata Gul Hariramani
  INDIA
  AATPH1945A
  Rent Expense
  Relatives of Key management personnel
  0
  129000
  0
  Sarla Arora
  INDIA
  AMAPA7884L
  Remuneration paid
  Relatives of Key management personnel
  0
  100000
  0
  SLS Logistik Academy Private Limited
  INDIA
  U74999DL2019PTC347122
  Miscellaneous Expense
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  0
  5000
  0
  Daya Nand Arora
  INDIA
  AARPA1858P
  Professional Charges
  Relatives of Key management personnel
  0
  375000
  0
  false
  false
  true
  true
  Section 2(87)(ii)
  Section 2(87)(ii)
  true
  true
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  false
  false
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  116155000
  116155000
  Trade receivables
  172959000
  172959000
  Trade receivables
  41421000
  41421000
  Cash and cash equivalents
  18787000
  18787000
  Cash and cash equivalents
  139228000
  139228000
  Other Bank balances
  27226000
  27226000
  Other Bank balances
  47000
  47000
  Loans
  0
  0
  Loans
  18670000
  18670000
  Other financial assets
  8487000
  8487000
  Other financial assets
  116155000
  116155000
  
 
  199366000
  199366000
  
 
  199366000
  199366000
  
 
  172959000
  172959000
  
 
  54500000
  54500000
  
 
  54500000
  54500000
  
 
  36103000
  36103000
  133718000
  133718000
  36103000
  36103000
  133718000
  133718000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  true
  true
  Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank balances
  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
  0
  0
  46013000
  The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current financial assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
  NA
  Cash and cash equivalents and Other Bank balances
  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
  41830000
  4183000
  4183000
  46013000
  The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current financial assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
  NA
  Trade receivables, Loans and Other financial assets
   In the absence of observable inputs to measure fair value the assets and liabilities have been classified as level 3. The Company has not given further disclosures since the amount involved is not material. The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities having short term maturities recognised in the financial statement approximates their fair values.
  0
  0
  181446000
  The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current financial assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
  NA
  Trade receivables, Loans and Other financial assets
   In the absence of observable inputs to measure fair value the assets and liabilities have been classified as level 3. The Company has not given further disclosures since the amount involved is not material. The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities having short term maturities recognised in the financial statement approximates their fair values.
  51855000
  129591000
  129591000
  181446000
  The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current financial assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
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  true
  true
  Borrowings, Trade payables and Other financial liabilities
   In the absence of observable inputs to measure fair value the assets and liabilities have been classified as level 3. The Company has not given further disclosures since the amount involved is not material. The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities having short term maturities recognised in the financial statement approximates their fair values.
  0
  0
  133718000
  The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current financial assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
  NA
  Borrowings, Trade payables and Other financial liabilities
   In the absence of observable inputs to measure fair value the assets and liabilities have been classified as level 3. The Company has not given further disclosures since the amount involved is not material. The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities having short term maturities recognised in the financial statement approximates their fair values.
  19120000
  114598000
  114598000
  133718000
  The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current financial assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
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  true
  false
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  Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-FZ
  UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
  Section 2(87)(ii)
  false
  false
  2024-04-01
  2025-03-31
  1
  AED
  NA
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  false
  -35911000
  4515000
  -127389000
  -26145000
  185922000
  -1479000
  false
  false
  <span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated cutomer returns, rebates, trade discounts and other similar allowances. <br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The new revenue standard supersedes current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. This new standard requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sale of services</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Incomes from multimodal transport services rendered are recognised on the completion of the services as per the terms of contract. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts offered by the Company as part of the contract.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Other income</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis with reference to effective interest rate method.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
</span>

  <span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Revenue recognition</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Rendering of services</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Incomes from multimodal transport services rendered are recognised on the completion of the services as per the terms of contract. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts offered by the Company as part of the contract.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Interest income</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
</span>
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  0
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  0
  0
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  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  <span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensated absences.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Defined contribution plans</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when services are rendered by the employees.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Defined benefit plans</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The Company has a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to employees who have completed five years or more of service at retirement, disability or termination of employment, being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Company.<br />
<br />
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.<br />
<br />
The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Short-term employee benefits</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits include compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service. <br />
<br />
The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under :<br />
(a) in case of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitlement of future <br />
   compensated absences; and<br />
(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Long-term employee benefits</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to statement of profit and loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past service cost.<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
</span>
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  false
  false
  false
  false
  SACHIN ARORA
  08952681
  1979-09-12
  Managing Director
  Graduate
  1732500
  4259000
  0
  4259000
  0
  0
  0
  4259000
  RISHI TREHAN
  08952682
  1979-07-24
  Whole Time Director
  Graduate
  247500
  3751000
  0
  3751000
  0
  0
  0
  3751000
  TARUN SHARMA
  06501856
  1983-12-02
  Director
  Graduate
  84700
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  YASHPAL SHARMA
  00520359
  1975-04-02
  Director
  Graduate
  84700
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  HIMANSHU CHHABRA
  09018796
  1979-01-13
  Director
  Graduate
  87900
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  ROHIT SEHGAL
  09018800
  1975-10-08
  Director
  Graduate
  84700
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  GUNJAN KAYASTHA AGARWAL
  10306147
  1978-06-21
  Independent Director
  Graduate
  0
  0
  0
  40000
  0
  0
  0
  40000
  MEGHA AGGARWAL
  06398960
  1986-03-08
  Independent Director
  Graduate
  0
  0
  0
  40000
  0
  0
  0
  40000
  DEEPAK SONTHALIYA
  10192017
  1989-10-25
  Independent Director
  Graduate
  0
  0
  0
  40000
  0
  0
  0
  40000
  Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair
  ADNPN8593K
  1970-03-18
  CFO
  Graduate
  0
  1626000
  0
  1626000
  0
  0
  0
  1626000
  Megha Verma
  BLMPV9769B
  1994-11-08
  Company Secretary
  Company Secretary
  0
  752000
  0
  752000
  0
  0
  0
  752000
  <span>
<span>Annexure-V</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Annual Report on CSR</span><br /><span>[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(o) of the Act and Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED</span><br /><span>(FORMERLY KNOWNS AS BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>1. </span><span>Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The CSR policy has been instituted based on the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) philosophy of your Company and is committed to undertake CSR activities in accordance with the CSR Regulations. Your Company conducts its business in a sustainable and socially responsible manner. This principle has been an integral part of the Company’s corporate values and believes that corporate growth and development should be inclusive, and every Company must be responsible and shall contribute towards betterment of the society. Your Company is committed to the safety and health of the employees, protecting the environment and the quality of life in all regions in which your Company operates. Donations are made in areas such as the social welfare, Promotion of veganism &amp; vegetarianism, animal welfare and the environment among others. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The CSR activities of the Company are as per the provisions of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and CSR Policy gives an overview of the projects and programmes which are proposed to be undertaken by the Company in the coming years.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>2. </span><span>The Composition of the CSR Committee:</span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Designation</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Nature of Directorship</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Deepak Sonthaliya</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Chairman</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Megha Aggarwal</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sachin Arora</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Managing Director</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span>In respect of Monitoring and evaluating of the CSR Policy and amount to be spent, Members of CSR Committee has discussed the matter in its meeting held on 03.06.2024.</span><br /><span>3.</span><span> Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company:</span><br /><span>The CSR policy and CSR projects approved by the Board may accessed at </span><span>www.braceport-logistics.com</span><span></span><br /><span>4.</span><span> Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report):</span><br /><span>Not Applicable</span><br /><span>5.</span><span> Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for setoff for the financial year, if any</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sl.</span><br /><span>No</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial Year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount available for set-off from preceding financial years (in Rs.)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any (in Rs.))</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>2023-24</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>2024-25</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span>6.</span><span> Average net profit of the Company for last three financial year as per section 135(5): INR 642.07 Lacs</span><br /><span>7.</span><span> Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): INR 12.84 Lacs</span><br /><span>8.</span><span> Details of CSR spent during the financial year:</span><br /><span>(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Amount</span><br /><span>Spent</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount Unspent (in Lacs.)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Account as per section 135(6).</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5).</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Date of Transfer</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the Fund</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Date of Transfer</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>13,00,000</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span>(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil</span><br /><span>(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: </span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sl.</span><br /><span>No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the</span><br /><span>Project</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Item from</span><br /><span>the list of</span><br /><span>activities in</span><br /><span>schedule</span><br /><span>VII to the</span><br /><span>Act.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Local</span><br /><span>area</span><br /><span>(Yes/</span><br /><span>No).</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Location</span><br /><span>of the</span><br /><span>project</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount</span><br /><span>spent</span><br /><span>for the</span><br /><span>project</span><br /><span>(in </span><span>Rs.</span><br /><span>Rs)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Mode of</span><br /><span>implementation</span><br /><span>Direct</span><br /><span>(Yes/No)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Mode of</span><br /><span>implementation</span><br /><span>Through</span><br /><span>implementing</span><br /><span>agency</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>State</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>District</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>CSR Registration number</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>EDUCATION</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>EDUCATION</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Yes</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Delhi</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>South Delhi</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>13,00,000</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>No</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>GREAT VALUE INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>CSR00009173</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span>(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil</span><br /><span>(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable</span><br /><span>(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): INR 13 Lacs/-</span><br /><span>(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: </span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sl.</span><br /><span>No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Particulars</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount (in lacs)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>12.84</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Total amount spent for the Financial Year </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>13</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.16</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.00</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.16</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span>9. </span><span>(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years</span><span>: </span><span>Nil</span><br /><span>(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year</span><span>: </span><span>Nil</span><br /><span>10. </span><span>In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year</span><span>: </span><span>Nil</span><br /><span>11. </span><span>Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5):</span><span>&nbsp;N.A.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>By order of the Board of Directors</span><br /><span>BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED</span><br /><span>(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>&nbsp;SACHIN ARORA&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;YASH PAL SHARMA</span><br /><span>&nbsp;Managing Director&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp; Director</span><br /><span>&nbsp;DIN: 08952681&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;DIN:</span><span></span><span>09018796</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Place: New Delhi								</span><br /><span>Date: 30.08.2025</span></p>
</span>
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  <span>
<span>The Composition of the CSR Committee:</span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Designation</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Nature of Directorship</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Deepak Sonthaliya</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Chairman</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Megha Aggarwal</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sachin Arora</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Managing Director</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
</span>
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<span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>CSR POLICY</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>.•</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span>
<div>
<p><span>/</span></p>
</div>
<p><span>CSR </span><span>POLICY</span><br /><span>Int</span><span>ro</span><span>d</span><span>uc</span><span>tion</span><span>:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>In </span><span>conform</span><span>i</span><span>ty with the requirements laid </span><span>do</span><span>w</span><span>n under The Companies (C</span><span>o</span><span>rporate </span><span>Social Responsibility Policy) Ru</span><span>l</span><span>es, 2014 </span><span>(h</span><span>e</span><span>reinaft</span><span>e</span><span>r referred to as th</span><span>e </span><span>&quot;CSR </span><span>Ru</span><span>l</span><span>es&quot;) is</span><span>sued </span><span>by </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>Mini</span><span>st</span><span>r</span><span>y o</span><span>f </span><span>Corpo</span><span>r</span><span>ate Affairs (&quot;MCA&quot;), </span><span>Gov</span><span>e</span><span>rnment </span><span>of </span><span>Ind</span><span>ia </span><span>under </span><span>Secti</span><span>o</span><span>n 135 </span><span>of </span><span>the Compani</span><span>es Act, </span><span>2013 </span><span>(&quot;the </span><span>Act&quot;) and </span><span>a</span><span>mendment t</span><span>hereto, Corpo</span><span>rat</span><span>e </span><span>Social </span><span>R</span><span>esponsibi</span><span>l</span><span>ity </span><span>Policy </span><span>(&quot;the </span><span>CS</span><span>R Policy&quot;) ha</span><span>s </span><span>been </span><span>framed </span><span>by </span><span>B</span><span>RA</span><span>CE </span><span>POR</span><span>T L</span><span>O</span><span>G</span><span>I</span><span>S</span><span>TI</span><span>CS </span><span>LI</span><span>M</span><span>IT</span><span>E</span><span>D </span><span>(</span><span>th</span><span>e Co</span><span>mp</span><span>a</span><span>n</span><span>y).</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>BRA</span><span>CE </span><span>POR</span><span>T </span><span>LO</span><span>G</span><span>I</span><span>S</span><span>TI</span><span>CS </span><span>LIMIT</span><span>E</span><span>D </span><span>(</span><span>h</span><span>e</span><span>r</span><span>ei</span><span>naf</span><span>t</span><span>er refer</span><span>r</span><span>ed </span><span>t</span><span>o </span><span>as &quot;t</span><span>h</span><span>e </span><span>Company</span><span>&quot;), </span><span>rec</span><span>og</span><span>nizes the imp</span><span>ac</span><span>t </span><span>it </span><span>ha</span><span>s o</span><span>n </span><span>communities </span><span>in </span><span>which </span><span>it </span><span>operates </span><span>and </span><span>believes </span><span>that </span><span>it </span><span>ha</span><span>s </span><span>a </span><span>tremendous </span><span>oppor</span><span>t</span><span>unity to </span><span>change </span><span>t</span><span>h</span><span>e </span><span>lives </span><span>of </span><span>t</span><span>hese c</span><span>o</span><span>mmunities and </span><span>ai</span><span>m</span><span>s </span><span>to b</span><span>e </span><span>a </span><span>t</span><span>ru</span><span>s</span><span>ted partn</span><span>e</span><span>r </span><span>c</span><span>o</span><span>ntributing </span><span>t</span><span>o the so</span><span>ci</span><span>al, econo</span><span>mic </span><span>a</span><span>nd </span><span>e</span><span>nv</span><span>iro</span><span>nmental progr</span><span>ess </span><span>of India. </span><span>As </span><span>pa</span><span>r</span><span>t </span><span>of </span><span>its dedicated </span><span>approach </span><span>t</span><span>o </span><span>create </span><span>eco</span><span>n</span><span>omi</span><span>c </span><span>opportunity </span><span>in </span><span>the communities </span><span>in </span><span>which </span><span>it </span><span>operate</span><span>s, </span><span>t</span><span>h</span><span>e </span><span>Company has </span><span>b</span><span>een </span><span>contr</span><span>i</span><span>buting </span><span>its time</span><span>, </span><span>exp</span><span>e</span><span>rtis</span><span>e </span><span>and </span><span>re</span><span>so</span><span>ur</span><span>ces </span><span>t</span><span>o he</span><span>lp </span><span>communities and undertaking </span><span>a </span><span>series </span><span>of </span><span>initiatives </span><span>that </span><span>are </span><span>l</span><span>oca</span><span>ll</span><span>y </span><span>rele</span><span>va</span><span>nt.</span><br /><span>CS</span><span>R Obj</span><span>e</span><span>ct</span><span>:</span><br /><span>Th</span><span>e </span><span>Company firmly beli</span><span>e</span><span>ve</span><span>s </span><span>that </span><span>CS</span><span>R </span><span>is </span><span>primarily</span><span>, </span><span>t</span><span>he </span><span>r</span><span>esponsibility </span><span>of </span><span>the </span><span>Company in </span><span>r</span><span>e</span><span>lation t</span><span>o </span><span>the impact </span><span>of </span><span>it</span><span>s </span><span>d</span><span>ecis</span><span>ions </span><span>and activities </span><span>on th</span><span>e </span><span>society and </span><span>a</span><span>lso th</span><span>e </span><span>environment, </span><span>through a tran</span><span>s</span><span>parent </span><span>and ethical </span><span>behavior which is:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>consistent with </span><span>susta</span><span>i</span><span>nable </span><span>devel</span><span>o</span><span>pment </span><span>and welfa</span><span>re </span><span>of </span><span>society,</span><br /><span>takes into </span><span>account </span><span>the </span><span>expectations of s</span><span>t</span><span>akeholders,</span><br /><span>i</span><span>s </span><span>in compliance with applicab</span><span>l</span><span>e laws, </span><span>and</span><br /><span>i</span><span>s </span><span>uniform</span><span>l</span><span>y integrated and p</span><span>r</span><span>acticed throughout the </span><span>Company.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Scope</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>In fu</span><span>r</span><span>therance of </span><span>it</span><span>s </span><span>CSR </span><span>ob</span><span>jects</span><span>, </span><span>the </span><span>following are </span><span>co</span><span>ve</span><span>r</span><span>ed </span><span>under </span><span>this </span><span>Policy</span><span>:</span><br /><span>1</span><span>.	</span><span>CSR </span><span>activ</span><span>i</span><span>ties </span><span>implemented </span><span>b</span><span>y </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>C</span><span>o</span><span>mpany </span><span>on </span><span>its </span><span>own,</span><br /><span>CSR activ</span><span>iti</span><span>es im</span><span>ple</span><span>mented by </span><span>the </span><span>Company thro</span><span>u</span><span>gh its Trust </span><span>/ </span><span>Society </span><span>/ </span><span>Sec</span><span>ti</span><span>on 8 </span><span>Company regi</span><span>s</span><span>tered under </span><span>sec</span><span>ti</span><span>o</span><span>n </span><span>1</span><span>2A </span><span>and </span><span>80G </span><span>of </span><span>Inc</span><span>o</span><span>me T</span><span>ax</span><br /><span>Act,</span><span>196</span><span>1</span><br /><span>CSR </span><span>activities </span><span>o</span><span>f </span><span>the </span><span>Com</span><span>p</span><span>any </span><span>throug</span><span>h </span><span>Agencies.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>D</span><span>efi</span><span>niti</span><span>ons</span><span>: </span><span>As per the Companies Ac</span><span>t</span><span>, </span><span>20</span><span>1</span><span>3 </span><span>and ru</span><span>l</span><span>es made there</span><span>u</span><span>nder (including an</span><span>y </span><span>amend</span><span>m</span><span>ent or reenactment th</span><span>e</span><span>r</span><span>eof).	</span><span>..,</span><br /><span>·</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>CSR Area:</span><br /><span>While the Company is </span><span>elig</span><span>ibl</span><span>e </span><span>to undertake </span><span>a</span><span>ny </span><span>suita</span><span>bl</span><span>e/rightful </span><span>activity as </span><span>specified </span><span>in </span><span>Schedule VII of </span><span>the </span><span>Act, however, at present, it </span><span>proposes </span><span>to undertake th</span><span>e </span><span>relevant activities on priority basis in the </span><span>following </span><span>three Thrust Areas:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Community health </span><span>care, sa</span><span>nit</span><span>atio</span><span>n </span><span>and </span><span>hygiene, including, </span><span>but </span><span>not limited to:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Es</span><span>t</span><span>ablishment </span><span>and management </span><span>o</span><span>f </span><span>state-of-the</span><span>-</span><span>art </span><span>healthc</span><span>are </span><span>infrastructure with </span><span>high </span><span>level </span><span>of </span><span>excellence.</span><br /><span>Providing financial and/or other assistance to the Agencies involved in </span><span>exclusive </span><span>medical research, public </span><span>h</span><span>ealth, </span><span>nur</span><span>s</span><span>ing </span><span>etc</span><span>.</span><br /><span>Providing financial assistance to </span><span>deserving </span><span>people for specialized medical treatment </span><span>in </span><span>any medical institution.</span><br /><span>Activities concerning </span><span>or pro</span><span>m</span><span>oting</span><span>:</span><br /><span>G</span><span>eneral </span><span>h</span><span>ea</span><span>lth </span><span>care </span><span>including preventive </span><span>health care</span><br /><span>Safe motherhood</span><br /><span>Child survival support programs</span><br /><span>Health/ medical camps</span><br /><span>Better </span><span>hygiene and </span><span>sanitation</span><br /><span>Adequate and </span><span>potab</span><span>l</span><span>e wa</span><span>t</span><span>er supp</span><span>ly</span><span>, etc.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Education </span><span>and knowledge </span><span>enhancement, </span><span>including, </span><span>but </span><span>not limited to:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Establishment and management of </span><span>educationa</span><span>l </span><span>and knowledge enhancement infrastructure.</span><br /><span>Providing </span><span>fin</span><span>ancial and/or </span><span>other </span><span>assista</span><span>n</span><span>ce </span><span>to the needy </span><span>and/or </span><span>deserving </span><span>stu</span><span>dents.</span><br /><span>Providing financial assistance to any Agency </span><span>involv</span><span>ed </span><span>in education, knowledge </span><span>enhancement an</span><span>d </span><span>sports.</span><br /><span>Facilitate enhancement of knowledge </span><span>and </span><span>innovation </span><span>in </span><span>the </span><span>educational </span><span>agencies.</span><br /><span>Contribution to </span><span>te</span><span>chnology </span><span>incubators </span><span>l</span><span>ocated </span><span>within academic institutions which are approved by the Central Government.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Social care and concern, including, but not limited to:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Creating Public awareness</span><br /><span>Protection and upgradation of </span><span>e</span><span>nvironm</span><span>ent including ensuring ecological </span><span>balance and related </span><span>ac</span><span>ti</span><span>vities.</span><br /><span>Rural development projects	</span><span>•	</span><br /><span>Others:	</span><span>p</span><span>o</span><span>rt </span><span>Log\st,cs</span><br /><span>Establishment </span><span>F</span><span>dt </span><span>ana</span><span>gement	</span><span>of	orphanages,	old	</span><span>age	</span><span>homes,</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Sanatoriums, Dharma</span><span>s</span><span>halas and </span><span>institutions </span><span>of similar </span><span>nature.</span><br /><span>Providing </span><span>assistance </span><span>to </span><span>in</span><span>s</span><span>titutes </span><span>of credibility </span><span>involved in </span><span>areas of social care, including:</span><br /><span>Preservation </span><span>of h</span><span>e</span><span>ritage</span><br /><span>Animal w</span><span>e</span><span>lfare, </span><span>s</span><span>ocial welfare and </span><span>r</span><span>e</span><span>lated matters</span><br /><span>Orphanages, old ag</span><span>e </span><span>homes, Sanatorium</span><span>s</span><span>, Dharmashalas and </span><span>institutions </span><span>of similar </span><span>nature.</span><br /><span>Other </span><span>humanitari</span><span>a</span><span>n activities.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Identification of CSR Projects:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>CSR </span><span>Projects need t</span><span>o </span><span>be </span><span>identified and planned for approval of the C</span><span>S</span><span>R Committee, </span><span>in </span><span>particular in </span><span>Thru</span><span>s</span><span>t Ar</span><span>e</span><span>as, with estimated expenditure and phase wise </span><span>implementation </span><span>schedules.</span><br /><span>The Company shall ensur</span><span>e </span><span>that </span><span>in </span><span>identifying </span><span>its CSR </span><span>Projects, preference </span><span>shall </span><span>be </span><span>given to </span><span>the local </span><span>ar</span><span>ea </span><span>and ar</span><span>e</span><span>a</span><span>s </span><span>around which the </span><span>Company (including </span><span>its Units) operates. </span><span>However, thi</span><span>s </span><span>shall </span><span>not </span><span>bar the Company </span><span>from </span><span>pursuing </span><span>its </span><span>CSR Project</span><span>s </span><span>in </span><span>other areas.</span><br /><span>As a cardinal principle, th</span><span>e </span><span>CSR Projects </span><span>in </span><span>Thrust Areas, shall </span><span>be identified </span><span>on the basis of a detailed a</span><span>ss</span><span>e</span><span>ss</span><span>ment </span><span>s</span><span>urvey.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Implementation of CSR Projects</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The </span><span>Company shall </span><span>impl</span><span>e</span><span>ment the identified CSR </span><span>Projects by </span><span>the following me</span><span>a</span><span>n</span><span>s</span><span>:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Direct </span><span>Method</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>J. </span><span>The Company may itself implPment the identified CSR Proj</span><span>e</span><span>cts </span><span>presently within the </span><span>scope </span><span>and </span><span>ambit of </span><span>the Thrust </span><span>Areas as </span><span>defined in </span><span>the </span><span>Policy;</span><br /><span>The Company </span><span>may also implement </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>identifi</span><span>e</span><span>d CSR </span><span>Projects </span><span>through Tru</span><span>s</span><span>t </span><span>and/ or Society </span><span>and/ or Section 8 Company which </span><span>is involved in </span><span>CSR activities, </span><span>within the </span><span>scope and ambit </span><span>of </span><span>the </span><span>Thrust </span><span>Areas as defined </span><span>in the Policy.</span><br /><span>The </span><span>Company, </span><span>may collaborate with </span><span>other companies, including </span><span>its Group </span><span>Companies </span><span>if </span><span>required, </span><span>for </span><span>fulfilling </span><span>its CSR objects </span><span>through the Direct method</span><span>, </span><span>provided that the </span><span>CSR </span><span>Committees </span><span>of </span><span>respective </span><span>compani</span><span>e</span><span>s are in a </span><span>position </span><span>to </span><span>monitor </span><span>separately </span><span>s</span><span>uch </span><span>CSR </span><span>Projects.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Indirect </span><span>Method</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>l.	</span><span>The Company may implement the identifi</span><span>e</span><span>d </span><span>CSR </span><span>Projects </span><span>through Agenci</span><span>e</span><span>s, subject </span><span>to the condition that:</span><br /><span>_ </span><span>The	</span><span>activities </span><span>pursued </span><span>by th</span><span>e </span><span>Agency </span><span>are covered within </span><span>th</span><span>e s</span><span>cop</span><span>e </span><span>and</span><br /><span></span></p>
<div>
<p><span>(</span></p>
</div>
<p><span>ambit of Sc</span><span>hedul</span><span>e V</span><span>II </span><span>of </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>Act provided</span><br /><span>. The Agency </span><span>ha</span><span>s </span><span>an established track record of a</span><span>t </span><span>least t</span><span>h</span><span>ree years </span><span>in </span><span>undertaking similar programs or pro</span><span>j</span><span>ec</span><span>ts, </span><span>and</span><br /><span>- The </span><span>Company </span><span>has </span><span>speci</span><span>f</span><span>ied </span><span>the Project </span><span>t</span><span>o </span><span>be under </span><span>tak</span><span>en </span><span>throug</span><span>h </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>Agency which </span><span>s</span><span>h</span><span>all </span><span>preferably be </span><span>i</span><span>n </span><span>Thrust </span><span>Areas, </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>modalities </span><span>of utilization of funds on </span><span>su</span><span>ch </span><span>Projects a</span><span>nd </span><span>the </span><span>monitoring and reporting </span><span>mechanism </span><span>wh</span><span>ich </span><span>sha</span><span>ll </span><span>be </span><span>atleast </span><span>once </span><span>in three months.</span><br /><span>T</span><span>he Company, </span><span>m</span><span>ay </span><span>collaborate with </span><span>other </span><span>compan</span><span>i</span><span>es, </span><span>includin</span><span>g </span><span>its Group Compan</span><span>i</span><span>es if </span><span>r</span><span>equ</span><span>ir</span><span>ed, </span><span>for fulfilli</span><span>n</span><span>g its CSR objects through the Ind</span><span>i</span><span>rect </span><span>method provided that the </span><span>CSR Commi</span><span>tt</span><span>ees of </span><span>resp</span><span>ect</span><span>ive </span><span>companies are in a position to mo</span><span>n</span><span>itor </span><span>separnte</span><span>ly </span><span>such </span><span>Projects.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Monitoring </span><span>of </span><span>CSR </span><span>Projects:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Monitoring </span><span>process for CSR Projects </span><span>sha</span><span>ll </span><span>include </span><span>t</span><span>he </span><span>following:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Evaluation </span><span>of Planned progress V</span><span>/s </span><span>Actual </span><span>P</span><span>rogress</span><br /><span>Actual expenditure V/s </span><span>expend</span><span>i</span><span>ture as </span><span>per </span><span>Approved </span><span>Budget</span><br /><span>Chief Financial Officer of the Company </span><span>to </span><span>certify </span><span>that </span><span>the f</span><span>un</span><span>ds </span><span>so </span><span>disbursed have </span><span>been </span><span>utilised for the </span><span>purp</span><span>oses </span><span>and in the manner as </span><span>approv</span><span>ed </span><span>by </span><span>the </span><span>Board</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Fund allocation and oth</span><span>e</span><span>rs</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Fund allocation</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The Com</span><span>p</span><span>any, i</span><span>n </span><span>every </span><span>Financial Year, </span><span>s</span><span>hall </span><span>endeavor </span><span>to spend t</span><span>h</span><span>e feasi</span><span>bl</span><span>e </span><span>amount, wh</span><span>i</span><span>ch shall not be </span><span>r</span><span>estr</span><span>i</span><span>cted </span><span>b</span><span>y </span><span>the statu</span><span>t</span><span>ory </span><span>l</span><span>imit </span><span>of a specified </span><span>p</span><span>e</span><span>rcentag</span><span>e of </span><span>its averag</span><span>e </span><span>net </span><span>profi</span><span>t</span><span>s of </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>im</span><span>mediate</span><span>l</span><span>y </span><span>pr</span><span>eced</span><span>i</span><span>ng three </span><span>Financial </span><span>Years. </span><span>However, the </span><span>aforementioned expenditure </span><span>in </span><span>any </span><span>financial </span><span>yea</span><span>r </span><span>shall </span><span>be at </span><span>l</span><span>east 2% of the average </span><span>Net </span><span>p</span><span>rofits </span><span>of </span><span>the Company for </span><span>t</span><span>he three </span><span>immediately </span><span>pr</span><span>eceding financ</span><span>i</span><span>al years. Amount spent </span><span>in </span><span>excess </span><span>of </span><span>requi</span><span>r</span><span>emen</span><span>t </span><span>of </span><span>2</span><span>% </span><span>may </span><span>be set-off against the requirement to </span><span>s</span><span>pend under </span><span>the Act </span><span>up </span><span>to </span><span>imm</span><span>edia</span><span>t</span><span>e </span><span>s</span><span>ucceeding three </span><span>financia</span><span>l </span><span>years subject to approval of the </span><span>Board.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The </span><span>CSR Committee </span><span>s</span><span>hall </span><span>prepare and </span><span>re</span><span>co</span><span>mmend t</span><span>o </span><span>the Boa</span><span>rd </span><span>Annua</span><span>l </span><span>Action </span><span>Plan </span><span>an</span><span>d </span><span>Budget </span><span>for </span><span>impl</span><span>e</span><span>mentation </span><span>o</span><span>f </span><span>CSR Projects:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The </span><span>Board </span><span>sha</span><span>ll </span><span>consider and approve </span><span>th</span><span>e Annual Action Plan and </span><span>Bud</span><span>get </span><span>r</span><span>ecom</span><span>mended </span><span>by </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>CSR </span><span>Committee </span><span>and </span><span>based </span><span>on </span><span>reasonable </span><span>jus</span><span>tificati</span><span>on, </span><span>may </span><span>a</span><span>l</span><span>te</span><span>r </span><span>a</span><span>b</span><span>ovelan atany </span><span>time </span><span>du ing the </span><span>financial </span><span>year </span><span>after </span><span>consideri</span><span>n</span><span>g </span><span>th</span><span>e</span><br /><span>recom</span><span>m</span><span>end</span><span>ati</span><span>on </span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span></p>
<div>
<p><span>J</span></p>
</div>
<p><span>In ca</span><span>se </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>Compan</span><span>y </span><span>fails to spend </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>statutory minimum </span><span>limit </span><span>of </span><span>2% </span><span>of Av</span><span>e</span><span>rage Profit</span><span>s </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>Compan</span><span>y </span><span>of </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>immediately preceding three </span><span>financial </span><span>ye</span><span>ar</span><span>s, </span><span>in any </span><span>g</span><span>iv</span><span>e</span><span>n financial year, th</span><span>e </span><span>Board </span><span>shall specify the reasons for the </span><span>sa</span><span>m</span><span>e </span><span>in it</span><span>s </span><span>rep</span><span>o</span><span>rt and unl</span><span>ess </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>un</span><span>s</span><span>p</span><span>e</span><span>nt amount relates </span><span>to </span><span>any </span><span>Ongo</span><span>i</span><span>ng P</span><span>roje</span><span>ct, tran</span><span>s</span><span>f</span><span>e</span><span>r </span><span>s</span><span>u</span><span>c</span><span>h un</span><span>s</span><span>p</span><span>e</span><span>nt </span><span>a</span><span>m</span><span>o</span><span>unt to a Fund specified in Schedule </span><span>VII </span><span>of th</span><span>e A</span><span>ct</span><span>, </span><span>within </span><span>a </span><span>p</span><span>e</span><span>ri</span><span>o</span><span>d </span><span>o</span><span>f </span><span>s</span><span>ix m</span><span>o</span><span>nth</span><span>s </span><span>of </span><span>the </span><span>expiry of the financial year. Furth</span><span>e</span><span>r</span><span>, </span><span>un</span><span>spe</span><span>nt </span><span>CS</span><span>R fund</span><span>s o</span><span>f on</span><span>go</span><span>ing proj</span><span>e</span><span>cts will be transferred within a p</span><span>e</span><span>ri</span><span>o</span><span>d </span><span>o</span><span>f </span><span>30 </span><span>da</span><span>ys </span><span>fr</span><span>o</span><span>m the </span><span>e</span><span>nd </span><span>o</span><span>f th</span><span>e </span><span>financial year </span><span>to </span><span>a special account opened b</span><span>y </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>comp</span><span>a</span><span>n</span><span>y </span><span>in </span><span>an</span><span>y </span><span>sc</span><span>h</span><span>e</span><span>dul</span><span>e</span><span>d bank call</span><span>e</span><span>d the </span><span>&quot;Unspent Corporate </span><span>Social </span><span>R</span><span>es</span><span>pon</span><span>s</span><span>ibilit</span><span>y </span><span>A</span><span>c</span><span>c</span><span>o</span><span>unt&quot;. </span><span>Su</span><span>c</span><span>h </span><span>amount </span><span>s</span><span>hall </span><span>be sp</span><span>e</span><span>nt by </span><span>the </span><span>company towards CSR within a p</span><span>e</span><span>r</span><span>io</span><span>d </span><span>of </span><span>3 </span><span>finan</span><span>c</span><span>ial </span><span>y</span><span>c&lt;1rs fr</span><span>o</span><span>m th</span><span>e </span><span>date of such </span><span>transfer, </span><span>failing which</span><span>, </span><span>th</span><span>e co</span><span>mp&lt;1n</span><span>y s</span><span>h</span><span>a</span><span>ll </span><span>tr</span><span>a</span><span>n</span><span>s</span><span>f</span><span>e</span><span>r the </span><span>s</span><span>ame </span><span>t</span><span>o </span><span>a Fund specified in Schedule </span><span>VII, </span><span>within </span><span>a </span><span>p</span><span>e</span><span>ri</span><span>o</span><span>d </span><span>o</span><span>f </span><span>30 </span><span>d</span><span>ays </span><span>fr</span><span>o</span><span>m th</span><span>e </span><span>date of completion of </span><span>the </span><span>third </span><span>financial </span><span>v</span><span>ear.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Impact Assessment</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Th</span><span>e </span><span>C</span><span>o</span><span>mpan</span><span>y s</span><span>hall undertake Impact </span><span>Assessment </span><span>(IA), through an indep</span><span>e</span><span>ndent agenc</span><span>y</span><span>, of the CSR Projects having outlays of one crore rup</span><span>e</span><span>e</span><span>s </span><span>or mor</span><span>e, </span><span>and which </span><span>have been </span><span>completed </span><span>at least </span><span>one year before und</span><span>e</span><span>rtaking the </span><span>impact </span><span>study.</span><br /><span>Impact Assessm</span><span>e</span><span>nt Reports shall be </span><span>placed </span><span>before the </span><span>Board </span><span>and shall be annexed </span><span>to </span><span>the annual report on CSR.</span><br /><span>The Company </span><span>may book </span><span>the Impact Assessment expenditure </span><span>towards </span><span>CSR </span><span>for that financial </span><span>year, which shall </span><span>not </span><span>exceed five percent of the </span><span>total CSR </span><span>expenditure for that financial year or fifty </span><span>lakh rupees</span><span>, </span><span>wruchever </span><span>is less.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Others</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The </span><span>CSR Committee shall ensure that major </span><span>portion of </span><span>the </span><span>CSR </span><span>expenditure in the Annual Action </span><span>Plan </span><span>shall </span><span>be </span><span>for </span><span>the Projects in the Thrust </span><span>Areas. </span><span>However, </span><span>there shall </span><span>not be any preference </span><span>given </span><span>to </span><span>any </span><span>particular Thrust </span><span>Area </span><span>for </span><span>budgetary </span><span>allocation </span><span>and </span><span>it </span><span>shall be made </span><span>purely </span><span>as per </span><span>the identified </span><span>CSR Proj</span><span>e</span><span>cts on need </span><span>basis.</span><br /><span>The Chairman of the Company is authorized to decide on Projects to </span><span>be imp</span><span>l</span><span>emented through </span><span>the Indirect </span><span>Method within the allocation as </span><span>per the </span><span>Annual Action </span><span>Plan.</span><br /><span>Any </span><span>surp</span><span>l</span><span>us </span><span>arising out </span><span>of the CSR </span><span>Projects sha</span><span>ll </span><span>not </span><span>form a </span><span>part of </span><span>the </span><span>business</span><span>b is\tcsJi:tmp</span><span>any and shall </span><span>be ploughed </span><span>back into </span><span>thEf l o1ect </span><span>orshall </span><span>be transferred to the </span><span>Unspent CSR Account</span><br /><span>and spent </span><span>in </span><span>pursuanc of</span><span>t</span><span>t</span><span>hic;</span><span>Policy </span><span>and&nbsp;Annual Action Plan or</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>transfer </span><span>such </span><span>surplus amount to </span><span>a </span><span>Fund </span><span>specified in </span><span>Schedule </span><span>VII of the Act, </span><span>withi</span><span>n </span><span>a </span><span>p</span><span>e</span><span>ri</span><span>od of six </span><span>months of </span><span>the </span><span>exp</span><span>iry </span><span>of </span><span>the financial year.</span><br /><span>Administrative overheads shall not exceed 5% of </span><span>the </span><span>total </span><span>C</span><span>SR </span><span>expenditure of the Company </span><span>i</span><span>n one </span><span>financial </span><span>year.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Dutie</span><span>s </span><span>and responsibilit</span><span>i</span><span>es</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Board of Directors</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The Board </span><span>s</span><span>hall </span><span>consider </span><span>and </span><span>approve Annual Action </span><span>Plan </span><span>and </span><span>Annual </span><span>CSR Budget and </span><span>modification, </span><span>if </span><span>any </span><span>bas</span><span>ed </span><span>on the recomm</span><span>e</span><span>ndation </span><span>o</span><span>f </span><span>CS</span><span>R </span><span>Commi</span><span>tt</span><span>ee.</span><br /><span>The </span><span>Board shall decide whether </span><span>a </span><span>CSR </span><span>Project i</span><span>s </span><span>to b</span><span>e </span><span>considered as </span><span>an </span><span>Ongoing Project </span><span>based </span><span>o</span><span>n </span><span>reasonable justification to that effect.</span><br /><span>The </span><span>Board </span><span>sha</span><span>ll </span><span>ensu</span><span>re </span><span>implementa</span><span>tion </span><span>of </span><span>CS</span><span>R </span><span>Projects </span><span>if </span><span>these </span><span>are </span><span>im</span><span>p</span><span>lemen</span><span>t</span><span>ed </span><span>through Implementation Agency(ies).</span><br /><span>The Board </span><span>sha</span><span>ll </span><span>include </span><span>i</span><span>n its Report </span><span>an annual report on </span><span>CSR </span><span>Projects </span><span>as </span><span>p</span><span>e</span><span>r th</span><span>e </span><span>format provided in the </span><span>A</span><span>c</span><span>t.</span><br /><span>The Board </span><span>s</span><span>hall </span><span>sa</span><span>ti</span><span>sfy </span><span>itse1f that the </span><span>funds di</span><span>s</span><span>bur</span><span>se</span><span>d </span><span>have been </span><span>utili</span><span>sed </span><span>for </span><span>t</span><span>he </span><span>purposes and in the manner as approved </span><span>by </span><span>it and </span><span>th</span><span>e Chief </span><span>Financi</span><span>al </span><span>Officer or the person responsible </span><span>fo</span><span>r </span><span>financial management shall certify to the effect.</span><br /><span>In cas</span><span>e </span><span>of </span><span>On</span><span>going </span><span>Project, </span><span>the Board </span><span>shall </span><span>monitor the </span><span>imp</span><span>l</span><span>e</span><span>mentation </span><span>of </span><span>the </span><span>project with </span><span>referenc</span><span>e </span><span>to the approved </span><span>timeline</span><span>s </span><span>and yea</span><span>r</span><span>-wise allocation </span><span>and </span><span>may make modifications for smooth implementation of the project within the </span><span>overa</span><span>ll </span><span>permiss</span><span>i</span><span>ble </span><span>time.</span><br /><span>The Board </span><span>to </span><span>decide on whether to set-off </span><span>excess </span><span>amount </span><span>s</span><span>p</span><span>ent on </span><span>CSR activities or </span><span>not.</span><br /><span>The </span><span>Board </span><span>s</span><span>h</span><span>all </span><span>ensure </span><span>that </span><span>the </span><span>composition </span><span>of the CSR Committee, </span><span>CSR Po</span><span>l</span><span>icy and CSR Projects approved are </span><span>displayed </span><span>on the website </span><span>of </span><span>the Company</span><span>.</span><br /><span>The Board shall </span><span>ens</span><span>ur</span><span>e comp</span><span>li</span><span>ance of CSR </span><span>Policy, </span><span>section </span><span>135 </span><span>of </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>Act and Rules made </span><span>thereunder.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>CS</span><span>R </span><span>Commit</span><span>t</span><span>ee</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The Committee </span><span>to </span><span>prepare Annual Action </span><span>Pl</span><span>an of CSR Projects to be underta</span><span>k</span><span>en </span><span>in </span><span>pursuance of CSR Policy and </span><span>recommend </span><span>the same to the </span><span>Board </span><span>with Annual CSR </span><span>Budget.</span><br /><span>The </span><span>c </span><span>,&lt;ifr</span><span>mmittee shall monito</span><span>r </span><span>the </span><span>i</span><span>m</span><span>plem</span><span>e</span><span>nt</span><span>ation of CSR </span><span>Policy and </span><span>A</span><span>nnua</span><span>f tfdi&gt;{\-4 /slfcsftM</span><span>.Pu</span><span>rp</span><span>ose, </span><span>the CSR </span><span>Committee shall</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>J</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>meet </span><span>at </span><span>l</span><span>e</span><span>a</span><span>st </span><span>twice </span><span>a year.	</span><span>CSR POLICY</span><br /><span>u1.	</span><span>In </span><span>discharg</span><span>e </span><span>of </span><span>CSR funct</span><span>i</span><span>ons of </span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>Com</span><br /><span>s</span><span>h</span><span>a</span><span>ll </span><span>be </span><span>dir</span><span>ec</span><span>tlyr</span><span>espo</span><span>nsibl</span><span>e</span><span>t	</span><span>th </span><span>B	</span><span>pany</span><span>, </span><span>the CSRCommitte</span><span>e</span><br /><span>r</span><span>eq</span><span>uir</span><span>ed </span><span>t</span><span>o </span><span>be done by</span><span>t</span><span>he </span><span>;SR	oar </span><span>for </span><span>ny act that</span><span>ma</span><span>y </span><span>be</span><br /><span>o</span><span>mm1</span><span>ttee m furtherance of </span><span>•t</span><br /><span>atutory obliga</span><span>ti</span><span>ons, or as </span><span>r</span><span>equired by </span><span>the </span><span>B</span><span>oard.	's</span><br /><span>iv</span><span>. </span><span>he </span><span>CS</span><span>R </span><span>Com</span><span>mitt</span><span>ee s</span><span>hall </span><span>place </span><span>befor</span><span>e </span><span>the Bo</span><span>ard the draft </span><span>annual rcpo t </span><span>o</span><span>n</span><span>_CSR as </span><span>per </span><span>the fo</span><span>rm</span><span>at </span><span>pr</span><span>escribed </span><span>in </span><span>t</span><span>h</span><span>e </span><span>Action </span><span>the </span><span>B</span><span>oard </span><span>mectmg </span><span>m </span><span>April/May of the following year for </span><span>th</span><span>e rev</span><span>i</span><span>ew and fina</span><span>li</span><span>za</span><span>tion</span><span>.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Review Periodicity </span><span>and amendment</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>i.	</span><span>Annual </span><span>Act</span><span>i</span><span>o</span><span>n Plan may </span><span>be </span><span>r</span><span>evise</span><span>d</span><span>/</span><span>m</span><span>odified/amended </span><span>b</span><span>y </span><span>the Board </span><span>based</span><span>o</span><span>n the </span><span>recommendation of the CSR Committee at such intervals </span><span>as </span><span>it</span><br /><span>may </span><span>d</span><span>ee</span><span>m fit.</span><br /><span>11.		</span><span>In </span><span>case </span><span>of </span><span>any </span><span>sta</span><span>tutory </span><span>m</span><span>od</span><span>ifica</span><span>tion o</span><span>r </span><span>amendm</span><span>ent </span><span>o</span><span>r </span><span>alteration </span><span>in </span><span>the </span><span>provi</span><span>sions </span><span>of</span><span>th</span><span>e </span><span>Act, the newly modified/amended/a</span><span>l</span><span>tere</span><span>d </span><span>provisio</span><span>n</span><span>s of </span><span>the </span><span>Ac</span><span>s</span><span>t hall be deemed to </span><span>be implemented in </span><span>the </span><span>p</span><span>olicy immediate</span><span>l</span><span>y with</span><br /><span>effec</span><span>t </span><span>from </span><span>t</span><span>h</span><span>e </span><span>da</span><span>te </span><span>of t</span><span>h</span><span>e statutory notifica</span><span>ti</span><span>on for </span><span>modification </span><span>/ </span><span>amendmen</span><span>t</span><span>/ alteration </span><span>etc. </span><span>The </span><span>amended </span><span>po</span><span>li</span><span>cy </span><span>should </span><span>be placed</span><span>befor</span><span>e </span><span>the </span><span>Committee and </span><span>Board </span><span>within reasonab</span><span>le </span><span>time </span><span>for </span><span>app</span><span>ro</span><span>v</span><span>al </span><span>/</span></p>
<div>
<p><span></span></p>
</div>
<p><span>consid</span><span>eratio</span><span>n</span><span>.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span></p>
</span>
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A brief description about the project is given below:
1. GREATVALUE INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION:
GREATVALUE INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION, the implementing agency is registered at New Delhi on 19/08/2011 under section 8 of The Companies Act 2013 (erstwhile section 25 of The Companies Act 1956) with registrar of the companies having Registration No: U80904DL2011NPL223928. (hereinafter referred as the “Company”)

Objective/Goals
M/S GREATVALUE INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION is a charitable and philanthropic organization established with the main objective to promote, establish, support, maintain, run, assist in setting up Schools and Higher Education Institutes, for common people irrespective of caste, creed, religion or sex.
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<span></span><br /><span>INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT</span><br /><span>To the Members of Brace Port Logistics Limited</span><br /><span>(formerly known as ‘Brace Port Logistics Private Limited’)</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Opinion</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Brace Port Logistics Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the&nbsp;Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the&nbsp;Standalone Financial Statements”).</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Basis for Opinion</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the </span><span>Auditor’s</span><span></span><span>Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements </span><span>section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Key Audit Matters </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Other Information</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.</span><br /><span>Responsibilities of Management for The Standalone Financial Statements</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of Standalone Financial Statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Other Matters</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The comparative standalone financial information of the Company as at the transition date and opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2023 prepared in accordance with Ind AS, included in these standalone financial statements has been audited by the predecessor auditor i.e. Girish Mangla &amp; Co. The report of the predecessor auditor on the comparative financial information and the said opening balance sheet dated September 06, 2023 expressed and unmodified opinion.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Report on Other Legal and Regulatory</span><span></span><span>Requirements</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>h) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>i)	With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position as at 31 March 2025 - refer note 29 to the Standalone Financial Statements.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company - refer note 37 to the Standalone Financial Statements.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:</span><br /><span>• directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company, or</span><br /><span>• provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:</span><br /><span>• directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party, or</span><br /><span>• provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>v) The interim dividend, declared and paid by the Company during the year is in accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and wherever enabled, the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Also, in respect of software used in maintaining payroll records, as described in note 44 to the Standalone Financial Statements, in absence of service organisation controls report in respect of audit trail, we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature of the underlying database was enabled and operated throughout the year.</span><br /><span>Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of accounting software except that in absence of service organisation controls report, we are unable to comment on the same in respect of the software used to maintain payroll records.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Additionally, the audit trail to the extent it was enabled has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention except that in absence of service organisation controls report, we are unable to comment on the same in respect of the software used to maintain payroll records.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>For </span><span>Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur &amp; Co.</span><br /><span>Chartered Accountants</span><br /><span>ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>per</span><span> Mohit Gupta</span><br /><span>Partner</span><br /><span>Membership Number: 528337</span><br /><span>UDIN: </span>25528337BMLNAF9882<br /><span></span><br /><span>New Delhi							&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp; </span><br /><span>May 28, 2025</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the Standalone Financial Statements of Brace Port Logistics Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025</span><br /><span>(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative&nbsp; </span><br /><span>&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp; details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, plant and equipment by which all Property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (including investment properties) (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) during the year.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(ii) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(b) As disclosed in note 15 to the Standalone Financial Statements, the company has been sanctioned working capital and cash credit limits in excess of Rs. Five crores in aggregate from bank on the basis of security of current assets of the company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of financials statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are not in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company on account of timing difference in reporting to the banks and routine book closure process of the Company and the details where are as follows:</span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span><br /><span>(</span><span>INR lacs</span><span>)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Class of Assets/ Liabilities</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Quarter ended</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount as per books of accounts (A)</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount as reported in the quarterly return / statement&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp; (B)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Discrepancy<br />
(A-B)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Trade Receivable</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>June 30, 2024</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1,527.87</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1,073.12</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>454.75</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Trade Receivable</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>September 30, 2024</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1,026.93</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1,089.07</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>-62.14</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Trade Receivable</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>December 31, 2024</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1,007.89</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1,034.13</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>-26.24</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Trade Receivable</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>March 31, 2025</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1,161.55</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1,169.00</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>-7.45</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Trade Payable</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>June 30, 2024</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1,140.58</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>379.38</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>761.2</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Trade Payable</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>September 30, 2024</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>349.03</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>178.28</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>170.75</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Trade Payable</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>December 31, 2024</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>181.65</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>178.20</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>3.45</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Trade Payable</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>March 31, 2025</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>313.43</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>216.39</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>97.04</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span>(iii)&nbsp;(a) During the year, t</span><span>he Company has provided loans to its employees as follows:</span><br /><span></span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Particulars</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Loans (INR lacs)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Aggregate amount provided during the year</span><br /><span>Others (Loan to employees)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span><br /><span>0.83</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases</span><br /><span>Others (Loan to employees)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span><br /><span>0.47</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span>Apart from above, during the year, the Company has not made any investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties and hence not commented upon.</span><br /><span>(b)&nbsp;During the year, the investments made and loans given to its employees, the terms and conditions under which investments were made and loans given to employees were not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The Company has not provided any guarantee or security and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year and hence not commented upon.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(c)&nbsp;In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(d) There are no amounts of loans granted to the employees, which were overdue for more than ninety days.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(e) The Company has granted loan which had fallen due during the year and were repaid on or before the due date. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue loans.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>	(f) The Company has not granted any loan, which is repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(iv)&nbsp;&nbsp;The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 and section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(v)&nbsp;&nbsp; The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(vi)&nbsp; 	According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Company’s products/business activity. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(vii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (‘GST’), Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Value added tax, Cess or other statutory dues which have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(viii)&nbsp; According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government authority.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall examination of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company, the Company has not raised any funds on short term basis during the year or in the previous year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. The company does not have any associates or joint ventures. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(f)	According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries. The company does not have any associates or joint ventures</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(x)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of initial public offer were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate utilisation have been invested in</span><span> readily realisable liquid investments</span><span>.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(b)	According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(xi)(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(xii)&nbsp;&nbsp;According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(xiii)&nbsp; In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(xiv)(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(xv)&nbsp;&nbsp;In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(b)	The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(d)	Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and the immediately preceding financial year.</span><br /><span>.</span><br /><span>(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(xix)&nbsp;&nbsp;According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Standalone Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>(xx)&nbsp; 	According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any unspent amount in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the expiry of the financial year and accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>For </span><span>Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur &amp; Co.</span><br /><span>Chartered Accountants</span><br /><span>ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>per</span><span> Mohit Gupta</span><br /><span>Partner</span><br /><span>Membership Number: 528337</span><br /><span>UDIN: </span>25528337BMLNAF9882<br /><span></span><br /><span>New Delhi							&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp; </span><br /><span>May 28, 2025								</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of Brace Port Logistics Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of Brace Port Logistics Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company as at and for the year ended on that date.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on the criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.</span><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Auditors’ Responsibility</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>A company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to&nbsp;Standalone Financial Statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of&nbsp;Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the&nbsp;Standalone Financial Statements.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Opinion</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to&nbsp;Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to&nbsp;Standalone Financial Statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>For </span><span>Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur &amp; Co.</span><br /><span>Chartered Accountants</span><br /><span>ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>per</span><span> Mohit Gupta</span><br /><span>Partner</span><br /><span>Membership Number: 528337</span><br /><span>UDIN: </span>25528337BMLNAF9882<br /><span></span><br /><span>New Delhi							&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp; </span><br /><span>May 28, 2025						&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span></p>
</span>
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<span>BOARDS’ REPORT<br />
To, <br />
The Members of<br />
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED<br />
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)<br />
<br />
Your directors take pleasure in presenting their 05th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statement of Statements for March 31, 2025. <br />
<br />
FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY<br />
FINANCIAL RESULTS:<br />
The financial performance of your company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025 is given below:<br />
                                                                   (Amount in Lacs) </span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The brief financial results are as under</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Standalone</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Consolidated</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>FY 2024-25</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>FY 2023-24</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>FY 2024-25</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>FY 2023-24</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Net Sales/Income from Business Operations</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>8558.20</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5500.43<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>8558.20</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5500.43</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Add-Other Income</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>93.65</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>24.16<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>93.65</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>24.16</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Income</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>8651.85</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5524.59<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>8651.85</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5524.59</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Less: Expenses</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>7725.93</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>4844.61<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>7733.46</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>4844.61</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Profit before tax</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>925.92</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>679.98<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>918.39</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>679.98</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Less: Current Income Tax</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>241.77</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>177.66<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>241.77</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>177.66</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Less: Deferred Tax expense/(income)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(1.96)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(0.24)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(1.96)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(0.24)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Profit for the Period</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>686.11</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>502.56<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>678.58</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>502.56</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Other Comprehensive income/ loss for the year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.71</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(0.64)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.78</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(0.64)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Comprehensive income/ loss for the year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>686.82</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>501.92</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>679.36</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>501.92</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Earnings per share (Basic) in Rs</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.81</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.09<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.74</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.09</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Earnings per Share (Diluted) in Rs.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.81</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.09<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.74</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.09</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY:<br />
<br />
The Company’s performance, on a consolidated basis, as compared to previous Financial Year is as under:<br />
<br />
During the year under review, the Company has a Net profit of Rs. 678.58 (In Lacs) against a profit of Rs. 502.56 (In Lacs) during the previous Financial Year. The revenue from operations of the Company has increased to Rs. 8558.20 (In Lacs) as compared to Rs. 5500.43 (In Lacs) in the previous Financial Year. Consequently, earning per share has increased to Rs. 6.74 compared to Earnings per share of Rs. 6.09 for the previous Financial Year. <br />
<br />
The Company’s performance, on a standalone basis, as compared to previous Financial Year is as under:<br />
<br />
During the year under review, Company has a Net profit of Rs. 686.11 (In Lacs) against a profit of Rs. 502.56 (In Lacs) during the previous Financial Year. The revenue from operations of the Company has increased to Rs. 8558.20 (In Lacs) as compared to Rs 5500.43 (In Lacs) in the previous Financial Year.<br />
Consequently, earning per share has increased to Rs. 6.81 compared to Earnings per share of Rs. 6.09 for the previous Financial Year.<br />
<br />
Your directors are hopeful for the bright future of the Company in the years to come.<br />
<br />
<br />
TRANSFER TO RESERVES<br />
<br />
During the financial year, there was no amount proposed to be transferred to the General Reserves.<br />
<br />
<br />
BRIEF DESCRIPTIOIN OF THE COMPANY’S AFFAIR &amp; FUTURE OUTLOOK<br />
<br />
Brace Port Logistics Limited is a company that specializes in providing ocean cargo logistics services to clients across various sectors of the economy. The company also provides services such as Air Freight, Warehousing facilities, special cargo services such as handling cargo in foreign countries and delivery of the same in other foreign countries and customs clearance services. The company has a strong network that serves customers in various industries including medical supplies, pharmaceuticals, sports goods, perishables, electronics, consumer durables, and automotive, both in India and globally.<br />
<br />
During the year under review, the Company made its Initial Public Offer (‘the Offer’) via Fresh Issue of equity shares comprising of 30,51,200 Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. 80 (including a share premium of Rs. 70), aggregating to Rs 244096000/- (Rs. Twenty-Four Crores Forty Lacs Ninety-Six Thousand Only). The Company completed its IPO successfully with participation of several leading domestic and global institutional investors as well as NRIs, HNIs and retail Investors. <br />
The equity shares of the Company were listed on National Stock Exchange Emerge Platform (“NSE Emerge”) on August 26, 2024.<br />
<br />
In order to embark its global footprint Company has incorporated a Wholly Owned Subsidiary on 09th December, 2024 in UAE with the name and Style of Braceport Logistics LLC-FZ in UAE.<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY<br />
<br />
During the year under review, there were no changes in the nature of Business of the Company. <br />
<br />
<br />
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT<br />
<br />
There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company which has occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and date of this Report.<br />
<br />
SHARE CAPITAL<br />
<br />
During the year under review, the Company has allotted through the Initial Public Offer (IPO) 30,51,200 equity shares having face value of INR 10/- each at an issue price of INR 80 per equity share. The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential voting rights or any sweat equity shares.<br />
<br />
<br />
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL APPOINTED AND RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR:<br />
<br />
<br />
During the period under review, there has been no change in composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year.<br />
<br />
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD<br />
<br />
The Company has several committees, which have been established as part of best corporate governance practices and comply with the requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes.<br />
<br />
As on March 31, 2025, Company has 04 (Four) Committees namely Audit Committee, Nomination &amp; Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. <br />
<br />
The details of the composition of the Board and its Committees are placed on the Company’s website at www.braceport-logistics.com<br />
<br />
The Directors have devised proper systems and processes for complying with the requirements of applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.<br />
<br />
(A) AUDIT COMMITTEE<br />
<br />
An Audit Committee is in existence in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.<br />
<br />
Terms of Reference/ Policy: <br />
<br />
Apart from all the matters provided under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audit Committee reviews reports of the internal auditor, financial performance and meets statutory auditors as and when required and discusses their findings, suggestions, observations and other related matters. It also reviews major accounting policies followed by the Company<br />
<br />
THE COMMITTEE CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS AS ON MARCH 31, 2025<br />
</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Name of Committee Members</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Status in the <br />
Committee</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Category</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Number of meetings attended</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Mr.Deepak Sonthaliya</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Chairman</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>3</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Ms.Megha Aggarwal</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>3</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Mr. Sachin Arora</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Managing Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>3</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
<br />
(B) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE<br />
<br />
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is in existence in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.<br />
<br />
Terms of Reference/Policy:<br />
<br />
Apart from all the matters provided under section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee reviews the complaints received from the stakeholders of the company as and when required and discusses their findings, suggestions, observations and other related matters.<br />
<br />
The Committee consists of the following Members as on March 31, 2025:<br />
</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Name of Committee Members</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Status in the <br />
Committee</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Category</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Number of meetings attended</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Mr.Deepak Sonthaliya</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Chairman</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>N.A.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Mr.Rishi Trehan</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Whole-Time Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>N.A.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Mr. Sachin Arora</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Managing Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>N.A.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
(C) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE<br />
<br />
A Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in existence in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company’s Policy on appointment and remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, has been disclosed on the Company website www.braceport-logistics.com<br />
<br />
<br />
Terms of Reference/Policy:<br />
<br />
On recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee the Company has framed a policy as per Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration.<br />
<br />
The Committee consists of the following Members as on March 31, 2025:<br />
</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Name of Committee Members</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Status in the <br />
Committee</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Category</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Number of meetings attended</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Mr.Deepak Sonthaliya</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Chairman</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Ms.Megha Aggarwal</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Mr. Himanshu Chhabra</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
(DCORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE<br />
<br />
The Committee consists of the following Members as on March 31, 2025:<br />
</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Name of Committee Members</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Status in the <br />
Committee</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Category</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Number of meetings attended</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Mr.Deepak Sonthaliya</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Chairman</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Ms.Megha Aggarwal</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Mr. Sachin Arora</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Managing Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
<br />
DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS<br />
<br />
In the Compliance of Provisions of clause (b) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013, 13 Board Meetings were held during the financial year. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.<br />
<br />
During the financial year 2024-25 board of directors met 11 times on 01.04.2024, 03.06.2024, 05.07.2024, 11.07.2024, 18.07.2024, 16.08.2024, 21.08.2024, 22.08.2024, 23.08.2024, 12.11.2024 and 04.03.2025.<br />
<br />
<br />
BOARD EVALUATION<br />
<br />
Pursuant to the Provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed the evaluation process and the performance evaluation of independent directors, executive directors and board whole as well as working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration committee has been carried out during the financial year 2024-25.</span><br /><span><br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
STATEMENT ON DECLARATION BY AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S)<br />
<br />
All the Independent directors of the company have given their independency declaration pursuant to sub-Section (7) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the board independent directors appointed during the year have integrity, expertise and experience (including proficiency).<br />
<br />
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013<br />
<br />
The particulars of loans, guarantees or investments made during the Financial Year 2024-25, if any, have been disclosed in the notes attached to and forming part of the Financial Statements of the Company prepared for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, as per the provisions of Section 186 and Section 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013.<br />
<br />
DIVIDEND<br />
<br />
During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company declare an interim dividend aggregating the amount of Rs. 187.88 Lacs on equity shares of the Company 2 times, details of which are as follows:<br />
<br />
The Board in its board meeting held on 05th July 2024 declares an interim dividend of Rs 1.25/- per share out of the reserves and surplus of the Company for the financial year 2024-2025 on Equity shares and that the dividend so declared be paid to those equity shareholders whose names stand in the register of members or as beneficial owners in the records of NSDL/CDSL as on 05-07-2024.<br />
The Board in its board meeting held on 04th March 2025 declares an interim dividend of Rs. 0.75 paise per share, at the rate of 7.5% on each fully paid-up equity share of Rs. 10 be paid out of the profits of the Company to those Members whose names appear in the Register of Members as on the Record Date i.e. 17th March 2025 for the payment of interim dividend.<br />
<br />
The Board of Director has not recommended any final dividend for the financial year ended 31st March2025. Accordingly, the interim dividend declared and paid shall be considered as the final dividend for the Financial Year 2024-25.<br />
<br />
TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTER EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND<br />
The Company does not have any unpaid / unclaimed amount which is required to be transferred, under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (‘IEPF’) of the Government of India.<br />
<br />
DEPOSITS<br />
<br />
During the year under review, your Company did not accept any deposits in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014. No amount was outstanding which were classified as Deposit under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as on the Balance Sheet date.<br />
<br />
STATUTORY AUDITORS<br />
<br />
M/s Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur &amp; Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 007895N) Peer Reviewed Firm was appointed as statutory auditors of the company at 4th Annual General Meeting to hold office as such until the conclusion of the AGM of the company to be held in the year 2029.The statutory auditors have confirmed that they satisfy the independence criteria required under the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable guidelines and regulations.<br />
<br />
AUDITORS’ REPORT<br />
<br />
The observations of Auditors in their Report, read with the relevant notes to accounts are self-explanatory. There are no qualifications, observations or adverse remarks which require comments of Board of Directors and require further explanations.<br />
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR<br />
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder; the company was appointed (MSTR &amp; ASSOCIATE) Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial Year ended March 31, 2025. The secretarial Report has been annexed as ‘Annexure – 1’ to the Directors’ Report<br />
There are no qualifications or reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimers in the said report.<br />
<br />
COST AUDITOR<br />
<br />
Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 the Cost Audit Report is not mandatorily applicable to our Company; hence, no such audit has been carried out during the year. <br />
<br />
INTERNAL AUDITORS<br />
<br />
The Company has in place an adequate internal audit framework to monitor the efficacy of the internal controls with the objective of providing to the Board, an independent, objective and reasonable assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s processes. M/s AEPN and Associates wasappointed as Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial Year ended March 31, 2025. The Internal Audit function develops an audit plan for the Company, which inter-alia, covers core business operations as well as support functions and is reviewed and approved by the Board on an annual basis. The internal audit approach verifies compliance with the operational and system related procedures and controls.<br />
Significant audit observations are presented to the Board, together with the status of the management actions and the progress of the implementation of the recommendations on a regular basis.<br />
<br />
REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS<br />
<br />
During the year under review, the Auditors of the Company have not reported to the Audit Committee, under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2103 (“the Act”), any instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees, therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Act.<br />
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO<br />
<br />
The statement relating to particulars in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings &amp; outgo under the Companies Act 2013 is given in Annexure II and forms part of this Report.<br />
<br />
RESEARCH &amp; DEVELOPMENT<br />
<br />
R &amp; D activities of the Company are focused specifically on development of curriculum based digital content. This requires continuous research and development, adoption of new and more efficient technologies and innovation.<br />
<br />
(i)Benefits derived as a result of the above R&amp;D<br />
<br />
Content created by us enables better learning and enhanced profit.<br />
<br />
(ii)Future Plan of Action         Aggressive growth<br />
<br />
(iii)Expenditure on R&amp;D:         NIL<br />
<br />
DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:<br />
During the year under review, the Company has one Wholly Owned Subsidiary which is as follows.</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sr no.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name of Body Corporate</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Formation No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Relation</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Country</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-FZ</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>2425390</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Wholly Owned Subsidiary</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Dubai</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
Pursuant to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Act, the statement containing the salient feature of the financial statement of a Company's subsidiary or subsidiaries, associate Company or companies and joint venture or ventures is given in form AOC-1 and attached as Annexure-III.<br />
    Your Company does not have any Associate Company during the Financial Year 2024-25.<br />
However, Brace Port Logistics Limited on 15th May 2025 has incorporated its Associate Company with the name and Style of AllGlobal Logistics Inc. in Canada.<br />
<br />
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:<br />
During the Financial year under review, the company has entered into related party transactions prescribed under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, Form AOC -2 is required to attach this report as Annexure IV.The Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions which can be accessed on the Company’s website <br />
www.braceport-logistics.com<br />
<br />
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY<br />
The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies major risks which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by your Board and is also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation process and measures have been also formulated and clearly spelled out in the said policy and the said Policy is available on Company’s website at www.braceport-logistics.com<br />
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS<br />
<br />
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are adequate in the opinion of the Board of Directors. Also, the Company has a proper system of internal controls to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. <br />
<br />
During the Financial Year 2024-25, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed.<br />
<br />
VIGIL MECHANISM<br />
The Company has established a robust Vigil Mechanism and adopted a Whistle Blower Policy in accordance with provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulations of Listing Regulations, to provide a formal mechanism to its Directors/ Employees/Stakeholders of the Company for reporting any unethical behavior, breach of any statute, actual or suspected fraud on the accounting policies and procedures adopted for any area or item, acts resulting in financial loss or loss of reputation, leakage of information in the nature of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI), misuse of office, suspected / actual fraud and criminal offences. During the year under review, no such concern from any whistle-blower has been received by the Company. The Whistle Blower Policy is available on Company’s website at www.braceport-logistics.com<br />
WEB ADDRESS<br />
<br />
Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (a) of the Act, the annual return for Financial Year 2025 prepared in accordance with Section 92(3) of the Act is made available on the website of the Company and can be accessed by using the link www.braceport-logistics.com<br />
<br />
DETAILS OF APPLICATION / ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016<br />
<br />
Neither any application was made nor any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the financial year under review.<br />
<br />
DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF</span><br /><span><br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
During the year under review, it has been observed that there is no difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the banks or financial institutions along with the reasons thereof hence, this provision is not applicable to the Company.<br />
<br />
RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT:<br />
As directed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit has been carried out at the specified period, by a Practicing Company Secretary.<br />
<br />
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT<br />
<br />
The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act, states that-<br />
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;<br />
(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the Financial Year and of the Profit and.<br />
<br />
Loss of the Company for that period; <br />
c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;<br />
(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and<br />
(e) the directors, have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.<br />
<br />
(f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.<br />
<br />
DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT-2013<br />
The company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &amp; Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The Company did not receive any complain during the year 2024-25.<br />
OBSERVANCE OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS <br />
The Directors state that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the applicable laws. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 118 of the Act, 2013 during FY 2023, the Company has adhered with the applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards (“SS-1&quot; and “SS-2&quot;) relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’ issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI&quot;) and notified by MCA.<br />
PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING<br />
The Company has also adopted a Insider Trading Rules, 2023. All the Directors, Senior Management employees and other employees who have access to the unpublished price sensitive information of the Company are governed by this Rules/code. During the year under report, there has been due compliance with the said code of conduct for prevention of insider trading based on the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.<br />
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT<br />
This report contains forward- looking statements based on the perceptions of the Company and the data and information available with the company. The company does not and cannot guarantee the accuracy of various assumptions underlying such statements and they reflect Company’s current views of the future events and are subject to risks and uncertainties. Many factors like change in general economic conditions, amongst others, could cause actual results to be materially different.<br />
GREEN INITIATIVE<br />
In commitment to keep in line with the Green Initiatives and going beyond it, electronic copy of the Notice of 5thAnnual General Meeting of the Company including the Annual Report for FY 2024-25 are being sent to all Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s).<br />
CASH FLOW AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS<br />
As required under the Regulation 34 (2) of the Listing Regulations, a cash flow statement is part of the Annual Report 2024-25. Also, the Company has presented the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 which forms the part of the Annual Report 2024-25.<br />
DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL<br />
During the year under review, the Company has not received any Orders from the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal which can impact the ‘going concern’ status of the Company.<br />
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT<br />
In term of Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, Management’s Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, is presented in a separate section, forming an integral part of this Annual Report and is enclosed asAnnexure-VI.<br />
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION<br />
None of the employees of the Company are in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed in (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Further in Compliance of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details are as follows:</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>I</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the <br />
employees of the Company for the financial year 2024-25</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sr No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Ratio of remuneration to the median <br />
remuneration of the employees</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Sachin Arora</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>12.60</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Rishi Trehan</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>11.10</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>II</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial year 2024-25</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sr No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the Director/ CFO/ Company Secretary</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>% increase over last F.Y.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Sachin Arora</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>24.09%</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Rishi Trehan</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>22.77%</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>3.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>46.58%</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>4.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Megha Verma</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>172.32%</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>III</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The percentage increase/ decrease in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>22.74%</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>IV</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2025</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>34</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>V</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The average percentile increases in the salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in the financial year 2024–25 was 6.15%, whereas the percentile increase in managerial remuneration was 31.66%.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>VI</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>VII</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management is as per the Remuneration Policy of your Company.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
POLICIES<br />
All the policies are available on the website of the Company i.e. www.braceport-logistics.com<br />
LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE<br />
The Company has launched its Initial Public Offer at the Platform of NSE Emerge and get listed on 26th August, 2024 and shares of the company are traded at NSE Emerge Platform. The Company has paid Listing fees to National Stock Exchange of India Limited.<br />
DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT<br />
The Provisions of Clause F of Schedule V of Regulation 34 of Details of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to the Company as Company does not have any Demat Suspense Account/Unclaimed Suspense Account as on 31st March 2025.<br />
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS<br />
<br />
Your directors would like to place on record their deep sense of gratitude to Shareholders and Stakeholders. The Directors place on record their sincere appreciation to all employees of the Company for their unstinted commitment and continued contribution to the Company. <br />
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Annexure-II<br />
<br />
ANNEXURE TO BOARDS’ REPORT (2024-25)<br />
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED (Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)<br />
<br />
Information as per Section 134(3) (m) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.<br />
Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo<br />
The details of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as under:<br />
Conservation of Energy:</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Steps taken for conservation<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The Company lays great emphasis on saving consumption of energy. Achieving reductions in energy consumption is an ongoing exercise in the Company. Effective measures have been taken to minimize the loss of energy, wherever possible.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Capital investment on energy conservation equipments</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
Technology Absorption:<br />
</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Efforts made for technology absorption</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The initiative measures have been taken by the company.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Benefits derived</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Nil</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Expenditure on Research &amp;Development, if any</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Nil</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Details of technology imported, if any</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Nil</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Year of import</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Nil</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Whether imported technology fully absorbed</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Nil</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Areas where absorption of imported technology has not taken place, if any</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Nil</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Outgo (In Lacs.):<br />
</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Earnings</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>314.65</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Outgo</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>147.24</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
<br />
<br />
By order of the Board of Directors<br />
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED</span><br /><span><br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)<br />
<br />
<br />
      <br />
 SACHIN ARORA                 YASHPAL SHARMA<br />
 Managing Director              Director<br />
 DIN: 08952681                 DIN: 00520359<br />
<br />
Place: New Delhi <br />
Date: 30.08.2025<br />
<br />
Annexure-III<br />
<br />
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED<br />
ANNEXURE TO BOARD’S REPORT (2024-25)<br />
<br />
FORM NO. AOC-1<br />
<br />
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)<br />
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures<br />
<br />
Part “A”: Subsidiaries<br />
<br />
</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sl. No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Particulars</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Details</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1.       </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the subsidiary</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-FZ</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s reporting period</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>3.       </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign subsidiaries</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>4.       </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Share capital</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>5.       </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Reserves &amp; surplus</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>6.       </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Total assets</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>7.       </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Total Liabilities</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>8.       </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Investments</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>9.       </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Turnover</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>10.   </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Profit before taxation</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>11.   </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Provision for taxation</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>12.   </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Profit after taxation</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>13.   </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Proposed Dividend</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>14.   </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>% of shareholding</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>100%</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
<br />
By order of the Board of Directors<br />
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED<br />
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
      <br />
 SACHIN ARORA                 YASH PAL SHARMA<br />
 Managing Director              Director<br />
 DIN: 08952681                 DIN: 00520359<br />
<br />
Place: New Delhi <br />
Date: 30.08.2025<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
Annexure- IV<br />
<br />
FORM NO. AOC-2<br />
  Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014<br />
<br />
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with  related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto<br />
<br />
Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction not at arm’s length basis: NIL<br />
<br />
Details of material contracts or arrangements or transaction at arm’s length basis<br />
</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Name of related party and nature of relationship</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Skyways Air Services Pvt. Ltd.-Holding<br />
a. Sale of Services -Rs. 4.25 Lacs<br />
b. Purchase of Services -Rs. 946.73 Lacs<br />
c. Reimbursement paid- Rs. 3.60 Lacs <br />
d. Rent Expense- Rs. 3.60 Lacs <br />
Phantom Express Pvt. Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary<br />
Purchase of Services - Rs. 27.63 Lacs<br />
Skyways SLS Logistics GMBH- Fellow Subsidiary<br />
Sale of Services - Rs. Nill<br />
Forin Container Line Private Limited- Fellow Subsidiary<br />
a. Sale of Services - Rs. Nill<br />
b. Purchase of Services– Rs. 359.56 Lacs<br />
Surgeport Logistics Private Limited- Fellow Subsidiary<br />
Sale of Services -Rs. 79.91 Lacs <br />
Skart Global Express Private Limited- Fellow Subsidiary<br />
a. Purchase of Services - Rs. 2.41 lacs<br />
RIV Worldwide Limited- Fellow Subsidiary<br />
a. Services Received -Rs. 14.97 lacs<br />
<br />
Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (Vietnam) - Fellow Subsidiary<br />
a. Purchase of Services -Rs. 2.96 lacs<br />
Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC (Dubai-UAE). - Fellow Subsidiary<br />
    <br />
Sale ofServices -Rs. 1561.91 lacs <br />
Purchase of Services- Rs. 25.52 lacs<br />
Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong)- Fellow Subsidiary<br />
Sale of Services -Rs. Nill<br />
Purchase of Services -Rs. 6.26 lacs<br />
Bolt Freight INC- Fellow Subsidiary<br />
Sale of Services -Rs. 17.56 lacs<br />
Purchase of Services-Rs.16.77 lacs<br />
Rahat Continental Private Limited- Fellow Subsidiary<br />
Sale of Services - Rs. Nil<br />
Purchase of Services- Rs. 5.05 lacs<br />
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limted-  <br />
Fellow Subsidiary<br />
              a. Software maintenance – Rs. Nil<br />
            b. Purchase of intangible assets –Rs.50.91lacs<br />
              c. Professional charges – Rs. 3.37 Lacs<br />
          14. Pradhaan Air Express Private Limted-Enterprises over which kmp has significant control<br />
             a. Purchase ofServices– Rs. 1485.99 lacs<br />
           15. Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-FZ- Wholly owned <br />
                                              Subsidiary<br />
             a. Reimbursement Paid-Rs. 7.41 lacs<br />
          16. SLS Retail Super Mart Pvt. Ltd.- Fellow      <br />
             Subsidiary<br />
             a. Miscellaneous Expense-Rs. 0.16 lacs<br />
             b. Advertisement &amp; Business Promotion-  <br />
              Rs.0.02 lacs</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span> Sale of Service, Purchase of Service, Advertisement &amp; Business Promotion and Miscellaneous Expanse</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Duration of contract/arrangement/transaction</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NA</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Salient terms of contracts or arrangement or transaction including the value, if any</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NA</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Date of approval by the Board, if any</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NA</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Amount paid as advance, if any</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
<br />
<br />
By order of the Board of Directors<br />
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED<br />
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
 SACHIN ARORA                 YASH PAL SHARMA<br />
 Managing Director              Director<br />
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<br />
<br />
Annexure-V<br />
<br />
Annual Report on CSR<br />
[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(o) of the Act and Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]<br />
<br />
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED<br />
(FORMERLY KNOWNS AS BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:<br />
<br />
The CSR policy has been instituted based on the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) philosophy of your Company and is committed to undertake CSR activities in accordance with the CSR Regulations. Your Company conducts its business in a sustainable and socially responsible manner. This principle has been an integral part of the Company’s corporate values and believes that corporate growth and development should be inclusive, and every Company must be responsible and shall contribute towards betterment of the society. Your Company is committed to the safety and health of the employees, protecting the environment and the quality of life in all regions in which your Company operates. Donations are made in areas such as the social welfare, Promotion of veganism &amp; vegetarianism, animal welfare and the environment among others. <br />
<br />
The CSR activities of the Company are as per the provisions of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and CSR Policy gives an overview of the projects and programmes which are proposed to be undertaken by the Company in the coming years.<br />
<br />
2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Designation</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Nature of Directorship</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Deepak Sonthaliya</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Chairman</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Megha Aggarwal</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sachin Arora</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Managing Director</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
In respect of Monitoring and evaluating of the CSR Policy and amount to be spent, Members of CSR Committee has discussed the matter in its meeting held on 03.06.2024.<br />
3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company:<br />
The CSR policy and CSR projects approved by the Board may accessed at www.braceport-logistics.com<br />
4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report):<br />
Not Applicable<br />
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for setoff for the financial year, if any</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sl.<br />
No</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial Year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount available for set-off from preceding financial years (in Rs.)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any (in Rs.))</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>2023-24</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>2024-25</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
6. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial year as per section 135(5): INR 642.07 Lacs<br />
7. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): INR 12.84 Lacs<br />
8. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:<br />
(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Amount<br />
Spent</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount Unspent (in Lacs.)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Account as per section 135(6).</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5).</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Date of Transfer</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the Fund</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Date of Transfer</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>13,00,000</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil<br />
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sl.<br />
No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the<br />
Project</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Item from<br />
the list of<br />
activities in<br />
schedule<br />
VII to the<br />
Act.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Local<br />
area<br />
(Yes/<br />
No).</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Location<br />
of the<br />
project</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount<br />
spent<br />
for the<br />
project<br />
(in Rs.<br />
Rs)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Mode of<br />
implementation<br />
Direct<br />
(Yes/No)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Mode of<br />
implementation<br />
Through<br />
implementing<br />
agency</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>State</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>District</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>CSR Registration number</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>EDUCATION</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>EDUCATION</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Yes</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Delhi</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>South Delhi</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>13,00,000</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>No</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>GREAT VALUE INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>CSR00009173</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil<br />
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable<br />
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): INR 13 Lacs/-<br />
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any:</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sl.<br />
No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Particulars</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount (in lacs)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>12.84<br />
</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Total amount spent for the Financial Year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>13</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.16</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.00</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.16</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil<br />
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year: Nil<br />
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Nil<br />
11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): N.A.<br />
<br />
By order of the Board of Directors<br />
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED<br />
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)</span><br /><span><br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
 SACHIN ARORA                 YASH PAL SHARMA<br />
 Managing Director              Director<br />
 DIN: 08952681                 DIN:09018796<br />
<br />
<br />
Place: New Delhi <br />
Date: 30.08.2025<br />
<br />
<br />
Annexure-VI<br />
<br />
Management Discussion and Analysis Report<br />
<br />
Brace Port is a service-based logistics company, comprising of 20 plus trained and experienced professionals. The organization has rich industry. Our aim is to provide highly optimized and customized supply chain solutions to our customers with unified technology systems. It has a wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-FZ in UAE.<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
1. Industry Overview- Logistics Sector<br />
<br />
Brace Port Logistics Ltd. (Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED) has continued to consolidate its position as a trusted and emerging player in the port logistics and freight forwarding sector. Amidst global trade challenges, supply chain disruptions, and rising operational complexities, the Company demonstrated robust adaptability, operational excellence, and a relentless focus on customer-centric services.<br />
<br />
A landmark achievement during the year was the successful listing of the Company’s equity shares on the NSE Emerge Platform in August 2024, marking a significant milestone in Brace Port’s corporate journey. This listing not only strengthened the Company’s capital base but also enhanced its credibility and visibility in the logistics ecosystem.<br />
<br />
Brace Port is actively working to build long-term partnerships with various entities, focusing on delivering seamless logistics support tailored to their operational needs. The Company’s objective is to emerge as a preferred logistics partner to various sectors, ensuring transparency, efficiency, and contributing to national logistics infrastructure development.<br />
<br />
<br />
With a strong foundation, strategic expansions, and a clear growth roadmap, Brace Port Logistics Ltd. remains poised to scale new heights in the logistics sector in the coming years.<br />
<br />
2. Industry Structure and Developments<br />
</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The Indian logistics industry is an essential pillar of the economy, facilitating the movement of goods across domestic and international markets. The sector is highly fragmented but is steadily moving towards organized players due to rising demand for efficient, technology-driven, and cost-effective logistics solutions.<br />
India's logistics market is expected to reach more than USD 380 billion by 2026, driven by <br />
strong economic growth, rising e-commerce penetration, infrastructure upgrades, and government initiatives such as:<br />
<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span>PM Gati Shakti National Master Plan for multimodal connectivity. Sagarmala Project for port-led development. Dedicated Freight Corridors (DFCs) to enhance rail-based logistics. National Logistics Policy (NLP) aimed at reducing logistics cost to 8-10% of GDP The Indian logistics industry is an essential pillar of the economy, facilitating the movement of goods across domestic and international markets. The sector is highly fragmented but is steadily moving towards organized players due to rising demand for efficient, technology-driven, and cost-effective logistics solutions.<br />
India's logistics market is expected to reach more than USD 380 billion by 2026, driven by strong economic growth, rising e-commerce penetration, infrastructure upgrades, and government initiatives such as:<br />
<br />
PM Gati Shakti National Master Plan for multimodal connectivity.<br />
<br />
Sagarmala Project for port-led development.<br />
<br />
Dedicated Freight Corridors (DFCs) to enhance rail-based logistics.<br />
<br />
National Logistics Policy (NLP) aimed at reducing logistics cost to 8-10% of GDP.<br />
<br />
The rise of e-commerce, digital supply chains, and increasing emphasis on integrated logistics solutions have accelerated the sector's growth trajectory. Innovations in warehousing, last-mile delivery, real-time tracking, and AI-driven route optimization are reshaping the logistics landscape in India.<br />
However, the sector faces challenges like high operational costs due to fuel price volatility, infrastructure bottlenecks, and regulatory complexities. Companies that can leverage technology, scale operations, and offer end-to-end logistics solutions are expected to thrive in this evolving environment.<br />
<br />
Brace Port Logistics Ltd., with its focused approach on port logistics, is well-positioned to capitalize on these growth opportunities, ensuring efficient cargo handling, seamless connectivity, and superior customer service.<br />
<br />
3. Opportunities and Threats<br />
<br />
Opportunities:<br />
<br />
a. Growing Demand for Integrated Logistics Solutions: With the Indian economy moving towards more organized logistics infrastructure, there is a rising demand for end-to-end integrated logistics services. Companies are preferring single-window logistics partners who can handle port operations, freight forwarding, warehousing, and last-mile delivery seamlessly. Brace Port is well-positioned to capitalize on this trend by offering comprehensive logistics solutions.<br />
<br />
b. Government Initiatives &amp; Infrastructure Push: Programs like PM Gati Shakti Master Plan, Sagarmala Project, National Logistics Policy (NLP), and Dedicated Freight Corridors (DFCs) are transforming India’s logistics landscape. These initiatives will enhance port connectivity, reduce turnaround time, and lower logistics costs, presenting significant growth opportunities for port-centric logistics players like Brace Port.<br />
<br />
c. Expansion into Air Freight &amp; Multimodal Logistics: With the acquisition of the IATA License, Brace Port has unlocked new business avenues in the air cargo segment. The multimodal logistics approach (Sea, Air, Road) will enable the Company to cater to a wider range of customers with time-sensitive cargo requirements, enhancing service capability and revenue diversification.<br />
<br />
d. Public Sector Undertaking (PSU) Collaborations: Collaborations with PSUs for their logistics needs present a huge opportunity for long-term, stable business. Brace Port's focus on compliance, transparency, and operational efficiency aligns with PSU expectations, positioning it as a preferred partner.<br />
<br />
e. Digital Transformation &amp; Technology Adoption: The logistics sector is undergoing digital transformation with technologies like AI, IoT-enabled tracking, automated warehouses, and digital documentation. Brace Port's proactive investment in digital solutions will enhance customer experience, operational control, and supply chain visibility.<br />
<br />
f. E-commerce &amp; EXIM Trade Growth: The surge in e-commerce, coupled with increasing export-import activities, particularly through port infrastructure, is expected to drive demand for reliable logistics service providers. Brace Port is strategically positioned to serve this growing demand efficiently.<br />
<br />
<br />
Threats:<br />
<br />
a. Intense Competition from Unorganized Sector: The logistics sector remains highly fragmented with numerous small and unorganized players offering services at lower costs. Competing with such players on pricing while maintaining service quality is a continuous challenge.<br />
<br />
b. Volatility in Fuel Prices &amp; Rising Operational Costs: Fluctuating fuel prices directly impact transportation and freight forwarding costs. Additionally, rising labor and infrastructure costs can affect profit margins, necessitating continuous efficiency improvements.<br />
<br />
c. Infrastructure Bottlenecks &amp; Port Congestion: Despite government initiatives, certain ports and logistics hubs continue to face infrastructure limitations, congestion issues, and bureaucratic delays which can disrupt service schedules and increase turnaround time.<br />
<br />
d. Global Economic Slowdown &amp; Trade Disruptions: Geopolitical tensions, supply chain disruptions, and global economic uncertainties can adversely affect trade volumes and logistics demand. Brace Port remains exposed to such external macroeconomic risks.<br />
<br />
e. Regulatory Changes &amp; Compliance Burden: The logistics sector is governed by multiple regulatory frameworks. Changes in taxation (GST), customs regulations, environmental norms, or trade policies can impose additional compliance burdens, affecting business operations.<br />
<br />
g. Cybersecurity Risks: With increasing reliance on digital platforms for cargo tracking, documentation, and communication, the risk of cybersecurity breaches has also intensified. Robust data security measures and cybersecurity protocols are essential to mitigate these risks.<br />
<br />
<br />
4. Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance:<br />
<br />
The Company is primarily engaged in providing port logistics services, including cargo handling, transportation, and warehousing solutions. For the year ended 31st March, 2025, the Company achieved a revenue of ? 8558.20 Lacs from port logistics operations, registering a growth of 55.59% over the previous year.<br />
<br />
5. Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance<br />
<br />
a. Standalone Financial Performance:<br />
<br />
For the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, Brace Port Logistics Ltd. has reported a Standalone Revenue from Operations of ?8,558.20 Lacs, reflecting a significant growth of 55.59% over the previous year’s revenue of ?5,500.43 Lacs. The robust growth in revenue is primarily attributed to increased cargo volumes handled at ports, expansion into air freight services post IATA certification, and onboarding of new clients in the EXIM (Export-Import) segment.<br />
<br />
The Standalone Profit After Tax (PAT) for the year stood at ? 686.11 Lacs, marking an improvement in profitability driven by higher operational efficiency, optimized resource utilization, and effective cost control measures.<br />
<br />
The Company’s focus on integrating digital solutions in cargo tracking, streamlining documentation processes, and adopting multimodal logistics strategies has led to enhanced service delivery and customer satisfaction, resulting in repeat business from key clients.<br />
<br />
b. Consolidated Financial Performance:<br />
<br />
On a consolidated basis, including the performance of its subsidiaries, the Company achieved a Total Revenue of ? 8,558.20 Lakhs during FY 2024-25, which represents a growth of 55.59% over the previous year’s consolidated revenue of ? 5,500.43 Lacs.</span><br /><span><br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
The Consolidated Profit After Tax (PAT) stood at ? 678.58 Lacs, reflecting the positive impact of strategic collaborations, expanded service offerings, and synergies achieved through subsidiary operations.<br />
<br />
The consolidated performance underscores the Company’s successful diversification into value-added logistics services, including customs clearance, warehousing solutions, and air freight operations, enhancing its market position as an integrated logistics service provider.<br />
<br />
The salient parameters of the financial performance of the Company during the year under review are as under:<br />
</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The brief financial results are as under</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Standalone</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Consolidated</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>FY 2024-25</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>FY 2023-24</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>FY 2024-25</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>FY 2023-24</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Net Sales/Income from Business Operations</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>8558.20</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5500.43<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>8558.20</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5500.43</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Add-Other Income</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>93.65</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>24.16<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>93.65</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>24.16</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Income</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>8651.85</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5524.59<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>8651.85</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5524.59</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Less: Expenses</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>7725.93</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>4844.61<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>7733.46</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>4844.61</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Profit before tax</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>925.92</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>679.98<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>918.39</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>679.98</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Less: Current Income Tax</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>241.77</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>177.66<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>241.77</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>177.66</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Less: Deferred Tax expense/(income)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1.96</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.24<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1.96</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.24</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Profit for the Period</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>686.11</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>502.56<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>678.58</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>502.56</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Other Comprehensive income/ loss for the year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.71</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(0.64)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.78</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(0.64)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Comprehensive income/ loss for the year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>686.82</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>501.92</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>679.36</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>501.92</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Earnings per share (Basic) in Rs</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.81</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.09<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.74</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.09</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Earnings per Share(Diluted) in Rs.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.81</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.09<br />
</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.74</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.09</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
6. Risks and Concerns<br />
<br />
Dependency on port infrastructure, currency fluctuations and regulatory clearances. Operational risks including cargo damage, delays, and supply chain disruptions. Geopolitical risks impacting global trade. Cybersecurity threats due to increasing reliance on digital platforms.<br />
<br />
<br />
7. Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy<br />
<br />
The Company has a robust internal control system commensurate with its size and nature of operations. Internal audits are conducted periodically to assess the effectiveness of internal controls, financial reporting processes, and compliance with statutory regulations.<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
8. Human Resources<br />
Human capital is a key asset for the Company. Regular training programs, skill development workshops, and employee welfare initiatives are undertaken to enhance productivity and job satisfaction. The industrial relations during the year remained cordial and harmonious the total number of Employees as on March 31, 2025 on consolidated and stand-alone basis is 34.<br />
9. Outlook<br />
With the Indian economy recovering post-pandemic and infrastructure reforms gaining pace, the outlook for the logistics sector remains robust. The Company aims to enhance its service offerings by investing in technology-driven solutions, expanding warehousing capacity, and strengthening strategic partnerships with port authorities and key clients.<br />
Brace Port Logistics Ltd. is confident of sustaining growth momentum by leveraging its operational expertise, customer-centric approach, and expanding footprint in key port locations.<br />
10.Growth Roadmap &amp; Future Strategy<br />
Looking forward, Brace Port Logistics Ltd. envisions scaling its business by becoming a fully integrated multimodal logistics service provider. The Company aims to strengthen its capabilities across sea freight, air cargo, and inland transport, positioning itself as a one-stop solution provider for clients seeking reliable and cost-effective logistics services.<br />
The management has outlined the following strategic priorities for the coming years:<br />
1. Geographical Expansion: Establishing operational hubs in key port cities and Tier-II locations to widen the service footprint.<br />
2. PSU &amp; Corporate Partnerships: Deepening engagements with PSUs and large corporates to secure long-term logistics contracts.<br />
3. Digital Transformation: Investing in advanced logistics technologies including real-time tracking systems, AI-based route optimization, and digital documentation workflows.<br />
4. Infrastructure Strengthening: Expanding warehousing capacity near port clusters and modernizing the fleet with technology-enabled vehicles.<br />
5. Sustainability Initiatives: Implementing green logistics practices aimed at reducing carbon footprint and promoting energy-efficient operations.<br />
While external challenges such as global trade uncertainties and supply chain disruptions may persist, the Company is confident that its proactive strategies, customer-centric approach, and robust operational framework will enable it to sustain growth and create long-term value for its stakeholders.<br />
Brace Port Logistics Ltd. is poised to navigate the evolving logistics landscape with resilience and agility, aiming to emerge as a leading player in the Indian multimodal logistics sector.<br />
11. Disclosure of accounting treatment.<br />
The Company has followed prescribed Accounting Standard in preparation of its financial statements in order to give true and fair view of the underlying business transaction.<br />
12. Details of significant changes in key financial ratios and in return on net-worth along with detailed explanations therefore</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Ratio</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>31st March, 2025</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>31st March, 2024</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>% change</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Reasons</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Current ratio</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>9.29</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1.86</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>400.83%</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Disproportionate increase in fixed deposit with banks.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Debt-equity ratio</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.01</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.04</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(72.83%)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Disproportionate increase in share capital due to public issue made by company.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Debt Service Coverage ratio</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>10.50</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>18.95</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(44.61%)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Disproportionate increase in earning before interest and taxes.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Return on equity ratio</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>25.69</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>44.24</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(41.93%)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Disproportionate increase in share capital due to public issue made by company.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Trade receivable turnover ratio</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5.92</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5.26</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>12.57%</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NA</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Trade payable turnover ratio</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>9.14</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.48</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>40.88%</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Disproportionate increase in purchases.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Net capital turnover ratio</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>2.42</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>4.70</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(48.61%)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Disproportionate increase in Sales</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Net Profit ratio</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>8.02</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>9.14</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(12.26%)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NA</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Return on capital employed</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>23.85</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>47.97</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(50.28%)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Disproportionate increase in earning before interest and taxes</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Return on Investment</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>4.23</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5.78</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(26.69%)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Disproportionate increase in fixed deposit with banks.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span><br />
By order of the Board of Directors<br />
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED<br />
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)<br />
<br />
<br />
<br />
 SACHIN ARORA                 YASH PAL SHARMA<br />
 Managing Director              Director<br />
 DIN: 08952681                 DIN:09018796<br />
<br />
Place: New Delhi <br />
Date: 30.08.2025<br />
</span></p>
</span>

  Brace Port Logistics Limited is a company that specializes in providing ocean cargo logistics services to clients across various sectors of the economy. The company also provides services such as Air Freight, Warehousing facilities, special cargo services such as handling cargo in foreign countries and delivery of the same in other foreign countries and customs clearance services. The company has a strong network that serves customers in various industries including medical supplies, pharmaceuticals, sports goods, perishables, electronics, consumer durables, and automotive, both in India and globally.

During the year under review, the Company made its Initial Public Offer (‘the Offer’) via Fresh Issue of equity shares comprising of 30,51,200 Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. 80 (including a share premium of Rs. 70), aggregating to Rs 244096000/- (Rs. Twenty-Four Crores Forty Lacs Ninety-Six Thousand Only). The Company com¬pleted its IPO successfully with participation of several leading domestic and global institutional investors as well as NRIs, HNIs and retail Investors. 
The equity shares of the Company were listed on National Stock Exchange Emerge Platform (“NSE Emerge”) on August 26, 2024.

In order to embark its global footprint Company has incorporated a Wholly Owned Subsidiary on 09th December, 2024 in UAE with the name and Style of Braceport Logistics LLC-FZ in UAE.

  During the financial year, there was no amount proposed to be transferred to the General Reserves.
  During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company declare an interim dividend aggregating the amount of Rs. 187.88 Lacs on equity shares of the Company 2 times, details of which are as follows:

A.	The Board in its board meeting held on 05th July 2024 declares an interim dividend of Rs 1.25/- per share out of the reserves and surplus of the Company for the financial year 2024-2025 on Equity shares and that the dividend so declared be paid to those equity shareholders whose names stand in the register of members or as beneficial owners in the records of NSDL/CDSL as on 05-07-2024.
B.	The Board in its board meeting held on 04th March 2025 declares an interim dividend of Rs. 0.75 paise per share, at the rate of 7.5% on each fully paid-up equity share of Rs. 10 be paid out of the profits of the Company to those Members whose names appear in the Register of Members as on the Record Date i.e. 17th March 2025 for the payment of interim dividend.

The Board of Director has not recommended any final dividend for the financial year ended 31st March2025. Accordingly, the interim dividend declared and paid shall be considered as the final dividend for the Financial Year 2024-25.

  a)	Conservation of Energy:
Steps taken for conservation
	The Company lays great emphasis on saving consumption of energy. Achieving reductions in energy consumption is an ongoing exercise in the Company. Effective measures have been taken to minimize the loss of energy, wherever possible.
Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources of energy	
Capital investment on energy conservation equipments	

  b)	Technology Absorption:

Efforts made for technology absorption	       The initiative measures have been taken by the company.
Benefits derived	                                                Nil
Expenditure on Research &Development, if any	Nil
Details of technology imported, if any	                Nil
Year of import	                                                Nil
Whether imported technology fully absorbed	Nil
Areas where absorption of imported technology has not taken place, if any	Nil

  c)	Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Outgo (In Lacs.):

Earnings	314.65
Outgo	147.24

  The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act, states that-
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;
(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the Financial Year and of the Profit and.

Loss of the Company for that period; 
c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate ac¬counting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
(e) the directors, have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.


  There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company which has occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and date of this Report.
  <span>
<span>The particulars of loans, guarantees or investments made during the Financial Year 2024-25, if any, have been disclosed in the notes attached to and forming part of the Financial Statements of the Company prepared for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, as per the provisions of Section 186 and Section 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013.</span>
</span>

  <span>
<span>During the Financial year under review, the company has entered into related party transactions prescribed under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, </span><span>Form AOC -2</span><span> is required to attach this report as </span><span>Annexure IV.</span><span></span><span>The Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions which can be accessed on the Company’s website </span><br />www.braceport-logistics.com
</span>

  false
  true
  Skyways Air Services Ltd
  Holding company
  Sale of Services, Purchase of Services , Reimbursement paid, Rent Expense 
  NA
  Phantom Road Express Private Limited 
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  Purchase of Services 
  NA
  Forin Container Line Private Limited
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  Purchase of Services
  NA
  Surgeport Logistics Private Limited
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  Sale of Services 
  NA
  Skart Global Express Private Limited
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  Purchase of Services 
  NA
  RIV Worldwide Limited
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  Purchase of service
  NA
  Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (Vietnam) 
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  Purchase of Services 
  NA
  Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC UAE
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  Sale of Services, Purchase of Services   
  NA
  Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong)
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  Purchase of Services   
  NA
  Bolt Freight INC
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  Sale of Services, Purchase of Services   
  NA
  Rahat Continental Private Limited
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  Purchase of Services   
  NA
  Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  Purchase of Intangible Assets, Professional Charges
  NA
  Pradhaan Air Express Private Limited
  Person on whose advice, directions or instructions a director or manager is accustomed to act
  Purchase of Services   
  NA
  Braceport Logistics L.L.C. - FZ
  Subsidiary company
  Reimbursement paid
  NA
  SLS Retail Supermart Private Limited
  Fellow Subsidiary company
  Miscellaneous Expense, Advertisement and Business Promotion
  NA
  2025-08-30
  <span>
<span>Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (a) of the Act, the annual return for Financial Year 2025 prepared in accordance with Section 92(3) of the Act is made available on the website of the Company and can be accessed by using the link </span>www.braceport-logistics.com
</span>

  Supporting transport services
  Other supporting transport services n.e.c.
  63030
  0.9892
  SKYWAYS AIR SERVICES LTD
  INDIA
  U74899DL1984PLC019666
  0.5109
  2(87)(ii)
  <span>
<span>All the Independent directors of the company have given their independency declaration pursuant to sub-Section (7) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the board independent directors appointed during the year have integrity, expertise and experience (including proficiency).</span>
</span>

  <span>
<span>A Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in existence in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company’s Policy on appointment and remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, has been disclosed on the Company website </span>www.braceport-logistics.com<br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Terms of Reference/Policy:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>On recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee the Company has framed a policy as per Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The Committee consists of the following Members as on March 31, 2025:</span><br /><span></span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Name of Committee Members</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Status in the </span><br /><span>Committee</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Category</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Number of meetings attended</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Mr.</span><span></span><span>Deepak Sonthaliya</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Chairman</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Ms.</span><span></span><span>Megha Aggarwal</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Mr. Himanshu Chhabra</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
</span>

  <span>
<span>The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies major risks which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by your Board and is also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation process and measures have been also formulated and clearly spelled out in the said policy and the said Policy is available on Company’s website at </span>www.braceport-logistics.com
</span>

  <span>
<span>Annexure-V</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Annual Report on CSR</span><br /><span>[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(o) of the Act and Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED</span><br /><span>(FORMERLY KNOWNS AS BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>1. </span><span>Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The CSR policy has been instituted based on the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) philosophy of your Company and is committed to undertake CSR activities in accordance with the CSR Regulations. Your Company conducts its business in a sustainable and socially responsible manner. This principle has been an integral part of the Company’s corporate values and believes that corporate growth and development should be inclusive, and every Company must be responsible and shall contribute towards betterment of the society. Your Company is committed to the safety and health of the employees, protecting the environment and the quality of life in all regions in which your Company operates. Donations are made in areas such as the social welfare, Promotion of veganism &amp; vegetarianism, animal welfare and the environment among others. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The CSR activities of the Company are as per the provisions of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and CSR Policy gives an overview of the projects and programmes which are proposed to be undertaken by the Company in the coming years.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>2. </span><span>The Composition of the CSR Committee:</span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Designation</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Nature of Directorship</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Deepak Sonthaliya</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Chairman</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Megha Aggarwal</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Independent Director</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sachin Arora</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Member</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Managing Director</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span>In respect of Monitoring and evaluating of the CSR Policy and amount to be spent, Members of CSR Committee has discussed the matter in its meeting held on 03.06.2024.</span><br /><span>3.</span><span> Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the Company:</span><br /><span>The CSR policy and CSR projects approved by the Board may accessed at </span><span>www.braceport-logistics.com</span><span></span><br /><span>4.</span><span> Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report):</span><br /><span>Not Applicable</span><br /><span>5.</span><span> Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for setoff for the financial year, if any</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sl.</span><br /><span>No</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Financial Year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount available for set-off from preceding financial years (in Rs.)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any (in Rs.))</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>2023-24</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>2024-25</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span>6.</span><span> Average net profit of the Company for last three financial year as per section 135(5): INR 642.07 Lacs</span><br /><span>7.</span><span> Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): INR 12.84 Lacs</span><br /><span>8.</span><span> Details of CSR spent during the financial year:</span><br /><span>(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:</span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Amount</span><br /><span>Spent</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount Unspent (in Lacs.)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Account as per section 135(6).</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5).</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Date of Transfer</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the Fund</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Date of Transfer</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>13,00,000</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span>(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil</span><br /><span>(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: </span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sl.</span><br /><span>No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the</span><br /><span>Project</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Item from</span><br /><span>the list of</span><br /><span>activities in</span><br /><span>schedule</span><br /><span>VII to the</span><br /><span>Act.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Local</span><br /><span>area</span><br /><span>(Yes/</span><br /><span>No).</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Location</span><br /><span>of the</span><br /><span>project</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount</span><br /><span>spent</span><br /><span>for the</span><br /><span>project</span><br /><span>(in </span><span>Rs.</span><br /><span>Rs)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Mode of</span><br /><span>implementation</span><br /><span>Direct</span><br /><span>(Yes/No)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Mode of</span><br /><span>implementation</span><br /><span>Through</span><br /><span>implementing</span><br /><span>agency</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>State</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>District</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>CSR Registration number</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>EDUCATION</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>EDUCATION</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Yes</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Delhi</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>South Delhi</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>13,00,000</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>No</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>GREAT VALUE INSTITUTE OF EDUCATION</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>CSR00009173</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span>(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil</span><br /><span>(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable</span><br /><span>(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): INR 13 Lacs/-</span><br /><span>(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: </span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sl.</span><br /><span>No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Particulars</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount (in lacs)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>12.84</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Total amount spent for the Financial Year </span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>13</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.16</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.00</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)]</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.16</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span>9. </span><span>(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years</span><span>: </span><span>Nil</span><br /><span>(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year</span><span>: </span><span>Nil</span><br /><span>10. </span><span>In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year</span><span>: </span><span>Nil</span><br /><span>11. </span><span>Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5):</span><span>&nbsp;N.A.</span></p>
</span>

  <span>
<span>FINANCIAL RESULTS:</span><br /><span>The financial performance of your company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025 is given below:</span><br /><span>(Amount in Lacs)</span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>The brief financial results</span><br /><span>are as under</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Standalone</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Consolidated</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>FY 2024-25</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>FY 2023-24</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>FY 2024-25</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>FY 2023-24</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Net Sales/Income from Business Operations</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>8558.20</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5500.43</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>8558.20</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5500.43</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Add-Other Income</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>93.65</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>24.16</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>93.65</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>24.16</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Income</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>8651.85</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5524.59</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>8651.85</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>5524.59</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Less: Expenses</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>7725.93</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>4844.61</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>7733.46</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>4844.61</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Profit before tax</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>925.92</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>679.98</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>918.39</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>679.98</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Less: Current Income Tax</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>241.77</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>177.66</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>241.77</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>177.66</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Less: Deferred Tax expense/(income)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(1.96)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(0.24)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(1.96)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(0.24)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Profit for the Period</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>686.11</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>502.56</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>678.58</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>502.56</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Other Comprehensive income/ loss for the year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.71</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(0.64)</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>0.78</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>(0.64)</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Total Comprehensive income/ loss for the year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>686.82</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>501.92</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>679.36</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>501.92</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Earnings per share (Basic) in Rs</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.81</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.09</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.74</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.09</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Earnings per Share (Diluted) in Rs.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.81</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.09</span><br /><span></span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.74</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>6.09</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span></p>
</span>

  <span>
<span>During the year under review, there were no changes in the nature of Business of the Company. </span>
</span>

  <span>
<span>During the period under review, there has been no change in composition of the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year.</span>
</span>

  <span>
<span>During the year under review, the Company has one Wholly Owned Subsidiary which is as follows</span><span>.</span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sr no.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name of Body Corporate</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Formation No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Relation</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Country</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-FZ</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>2425390</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Wholly Owned Subsidiary</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Dubai</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span><br /><span>Pursuant to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Act, the statement containing the salient feature of the financial statement of a Company's subsidiary or subsidiaries, associate Company or companies and joint venture or ventures is given in form AOC-1 and attached as Annexure-III.</span><br /><span>&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp; Your Company does not have any Associate Company during the Financial Year 2024-25.</span><br /><span>However, Brace Port Logistics Limited on 15</span><span>th</span><span> May 2025 has incorporated its Associate Company with the name and Style of AllGlobal Logistics Inc. in Canada.</span></p>
</span>

  <span>
<span>During the year under review, your Company did not accept any deposits in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014. No amount was outstanding which were classified as Deposit under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as on the Balance Sheet date.</span>
</span>

  <span>
<span>NA</span>
</span>

  <span>
<span>During the year under review, the Company has not received any Orders from the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal which can impact the ‘going concern’ status of the Company.</span>
</span>

  <span>
<span>The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are adequate in the opinion of the Board of Directors. Also, the Company has a proper system of internal controls to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>During the Financial Year 2024-25, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed.</span>
</span>

  <span>
<span>PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION</span><br /><span>None of the employees of the Company are in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits prescribed in (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Further in Compliance of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details are as follows:</span>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>I</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the </span><br /><span>employees of the Company for the financial year 2024-25</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sr No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the Director</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Ratio of remuneration to the median </span><br /><span>remuneration of the employees</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Sachin Arora</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>12.60</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Rishi Trehan</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>11.10</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<p><span></span></p>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>II</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial year 2024-25</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
<table class="bordered">
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>Sr No.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Name of the Director/ CFO/ Company Secretary</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>% increase over last F.Y.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>1.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Sachin Arora</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>24.09%</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>2.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Rishi Trehan</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>22.77%</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>3.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>46.58%</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>4.</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Megha Verma</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>172.32%</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>III</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The percentage increase/ decrease in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>22.74%</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>IV</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2025</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>34</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>V</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The average percentile increases in the salaries of employees other than managerial personnel in the financial year 2024–25 was 6.15%, whereas the percentile increase in managerial remuneration was 31.66%.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>VI</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>NIL</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>
<p><span>VII</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company</span></p>
</td>
<td>
<p><span>Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, it is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management is as per the Remuneration Policy of your Company.</span></p>
</td>
</tr>
</table>
</span>
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<span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Form No. MR-3</span><br /><span>Secretarial Audit Report</span><br /><span>For the Financial year ended 2024-25</span><br /><span>[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>To,</span><br /><span>The Members</span><br /><span>BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED</span><br /><span>Plot No. A-390 B, 2</span><span>nd</span><span> Floor, A-Block, </span><br /><span>Road No 2, Mahipalpur Extn., New Delhi-110037</span><br /><span>Sir,</span><br /><span>We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by </span><span>BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED</span><span> (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my Opinion thereon. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Based on our verification of the </span><span>BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED</span><span> books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>	We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by </span><span>BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED</span><span></span><span>(</span><span>“The Company”</span><span>) for the period ended on 31-03-2025 according to the provisions of:</span><br /><span>I. The Companies Act, 2013 (</span><span>the Act</span><span>) and the Rules made there under;</span><br /><span>II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (</span><span>‘SCRA’</span><span>) and the Rules made thereunder; </span><span>(Not applicable to the Company during the period).</span><br /><span>III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;</span><br /><span>IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;</span><br /><span>V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (</span><span>‘SEBI Act’) </span><span>to the extent applicable to the Company:-</span><br /><span>a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;</span><br /><span>b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 and SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;</span><span>.</span><br /><span>c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; </span><span>(Not applicable to the Company during the period).</span><br /><span>d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; </span><span>(Not applicable to the Company during the period).</span><br /><span>e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; </span><span>(Not applicable to the Company during the period).</span><br /><span>f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;</span><br /><span>g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 and;</span><span> (Not applicable to the Company during the period).</span><br /><span>h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; </span><span>(Not applicable to the Company during the period).</span><br /><span>We have relied on the presentation made by the Company and its officer for systems and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable acts, laws and regulations as applicable to the Company.</span><br /><span>I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the followings:</span><br /><span>(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretary of India. </span><br /><span>(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges(s), </span><br /><span>During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. </span><br /><span>&nbsp;&nbsp;&nbsp;		</span><br /><span>We further report that</span><br /><span>The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors (if any) that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. </span><br /><span>The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.</span><br /><span>Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.</span><br /><span>Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.</span><br /><span>The Company at its meeting held on August 16, 2024 allocated 5,37,600 Equity Shares to Anchor Investors @INR 80/- per equity shares (including share premium of INR 70/- per equity share). The equity shares of the Company were listed on National Stock Exchange Emerge Platform (“NSE Emerge”) on August 26, 2024.</span><br /><span>During the year under review, the company has changed its registered office from A-182, Mahipalpur Extension 5 Road No 4 South Delhi-110037 to Plot No. A-390 B, 2nd Floor, A-Block, Road No 2, Mahipalpur Extn Southwest Delhi, New Delhi 110037.</span><br /><span>During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company has declared an interim dividend aggregating the amount of Rs. 187.88 Lacs on equity shares of the Company 2 times, details of which are as follows:</span><br /><span>The Board in its board meeting held on 05</span><span>th</span><span> July 2024 declares an interim dividend of Rs 1.25/- per share out of the reserves and surplus of the Company for the financial year 2024-2025 on Equity shares and that the dividend so declared be paid to those equity shareholders whose names stand in the register of members or as beneficial owners in the records of NSDL/CDSL as on 05-07-2024.</span><br /><span>The Board in its board meeting held on 04</span><span>th</span><span> March 2025 declares </span><span>an interim dividend of Rs. 0.75 paise per share, at the rate of 7.5% on each fully paid-up equity share of Rs. 10 be paid out of the profits of the Company to those Members whose names appear in the Register of Members as on the Record Date i.e. 17</span><span>th</span><span> March 2025 for the payment of interim dividend.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>The Company has incorporated “</span><span>Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-FZ”</span><span> as Wholly Owned Subsidiary in Dubai vide 2425390 Formation No., during the year under review. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>During the year under review, the Company made its Initial Public Offer (‘the Offer’) via Fresh Issue of equity shares comprising of 30,51,200 Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. 80 (including a share premium of Rs. 70), aggregating to </span><span>Rs 244096000/- (Rs. Twenty-Four Crores Forty Lacs Ninety-Six Thousand Only)</span><span>.&nbsp;The offer had been initially authorized by the Shareholders in their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 25.08.2023. The offer was open for Public from 19.08.2024 to 21.08.2024. The Company completed its IPO successfully with participation of several leading domestic and global institutional investors as well as NRIs, HNIs and retail Investors. The Offer was oversubscribed by 657.81 times. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>We further report that </span><span>there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Note: Please report specific observations / qualification, reservation or adverse remarks in respect of the Board Structures/system and processes relating to the Audit period.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>We further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of:</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Redemption / buy-back of securities</span><br /><span>Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction,</span><br /><span>Foreign technical collaborations-</span><span> The Company has incorporated “</span><span>Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-FZ”</span><span> as Wholly Owned Subsidiary in Dubai vide 2425390 Formation No., during the year under review.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Further, the Company has duly filed applicable forms and returns with the Registrar of Companies, Delhi &amp; Haryana / Ministry of Corporate Affairs within the prescribed time or with additional fee in cases of delayed filings. Few forms / returns (if any) which were due for filing during the financial year, the management has assured compliance with the same in future.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure 1” and forms an integral part of this report.</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>For MSTR &amp; Associates </span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Teena Rani 							</span><br /><span>Sole Proprietor </span><br /><span>M. No. 40050</span><br /><span>COP No. 21768</span><br /><span>UDIN: </span><span>A040050G000479786</span><br /><span>Place: New Delhi</span><br /><span>Date: 28.05.2025&nbsp;</span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>“Annexure A”</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>To,</span><br /><span>The Members</span><br /><span>BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED</span><br /><span>Plot No. A-390 B, 2</span><span>nd</span><span> Floor, A-Block, </span><br /><span>Road No 2, Mahipalpur Extn., New Delhi-110037</span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Sub: Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 of even date is to be read with this letter </span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. </span><br /><span>We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. </span><br /><span>We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company. </span><br /><span>Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. </span><br /><span>The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. </span><br /><span>The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. </span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>For MSTR &amp; Associates </span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span></span><br /><span>Teena Rani</span><br /><span>Sole Proprietor&nbsp;							</span><br /><span>M. No. 40050</span><br /><span>COP No. 21768</span><br /><span>UDIN: </span><span>A040050G000479786</span><br /><span>Place: New Delhi</span><br /><span>Date: 28.05.2025&nbsp;</span>
</span>
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  0
  0
  2428000
  11661000
  2146000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  2146000
  13807000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  1540000
  1540000
  0
  0
  1540000
  1540000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  2146000
  0
  0
  0
  -1540000
  0
  -1540000
  0
  606000
  2720000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  2720000
  10584000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  1085000
  1085000
  0
  0
  1085000
  2031000
  2720000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  -1085000
  -1085000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  1635000
  8553000
  717000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  717000
  717000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  18000
  18000
  0
  0
  18000
  18000
  717000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  -18000
  -18000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  699000
  699000
  7864000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  7864000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  946000
  946000
  0
  0
  946000
  946000
  0
  6918000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  -946000
  0
  -946000
  0
  -946000
  7864000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  Right-of- use assets
  0
  0
  0
  5828000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  5828000
  5828000
  Right-of- use assets
  1171000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  1171000
  1171000
  Right-of- use assets
  0
  0
  0
  -1171000
  0
  0
  5828000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  4657000
  4657000
  NA
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  NA
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  NA
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  5828000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  5828000
  5828000
  1171000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  1171000
  1171000
  0
  0
  0
  -1171000
  0
  0
  5828000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  4657000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  5828000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  5828000
  5828000
  1171000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  1171000
  1171000
  0
  0
  0
  -1171000
  0
  0
  5828000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  4657000
  4657000
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  0
  
   
   <span>
<span>Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than three months but remaining maturity of less than twelve months</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than three months but remaining maturity of less than twelve months</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Liabilities written back</span><br /><span>2. Allowance for expected credit loss</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Liabilities written back</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Purchase of intangible assets</span><br /><span>2. Purchase of right of use assets</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Loan to employees</span><br /><span>2. Bank withdrawal/deposit not considered as cash and cash equivalents</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1.</span><span> Bank withdrawal/deposit not considered as cash and cash equivalents</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Share issue expenses</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>a. Secured by Hypothecation of respective Vehicles and are repayable in equated monthly instalments over the tenure of loans of 60 months carries interest rate of 8.55%. </span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>a. Secured by Hypothecation of respective Vehicles and are repayable in equated monthly instalments over the tenure of loans of 60 months carries interest rate of 8.55%.</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Balances with banks</span><br /><span>&nbsp;&nbsp;- on current account</span><br /><span>&nbsp;&nbsp;- Dividend account</span><br /><span>&nbsp;&nbsp;- in overdraft account</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Balances with banks</span><br /><span>&nbsp;&nbsp;- on current account</span><br /><span>&nbsp;&nbsp;- in overdraft account</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>provision for compensated absences</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>provision for compensated absences</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Interest income earned on:</span><br /><span> - bank deposits</span><br /><span> - Financial assets</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Interest income earned on:</span><br /><span> - bank deposits</span><br /><span> - Financial assets</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Other Finance costs</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Other Finance costs</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Communication Expenses</span><br /><span>2. Allowance for expected credit loss on trade receivables</span><br /><span>3. Miscellaneous expenses</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Communication Expenses</span><br /><span>2. Miscellaneous expenses</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Reimbursement paid<br />
2. Dividend paid<br />
3. Rent Expense </span><br /><span>4. Interest on Corporate Guarantee</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Reimbursement paid</span><br /><span>2. Rent Expense</span><br /><span>3. Interest on Corporate Guarantee</span><br /><span>4. Miscellaneous Expense</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Issue of Bonus Shares</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Purchase of Intangible Assets</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Software maintenance <br />
2. Professional Charges </span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Purchase of Intangible Assets</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Professional Charges</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Miscellaneous Expense</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Reimbursement paid</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Reimbursement paid</span><br /><span>2. Remuneration paid</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Issue of Bonus Shares</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Miscellaneous Expense</span><br /><span>2. Advertisement and Business Promotion</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Reimbursement paid<br />
2. Remuneration paid </span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Issue of Bonus Shares </span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Reimbursement paid<br />
2. Dividend paid </span><br /><span>3. Remuneration paid</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Issue of Bonus Shares </span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Reimbursement paid<br />
2. Dividend paid <br />
3. Remuneration paid </span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Issue of Bonus Shares </span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Dividend paid</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Issue of Bonus Shares </span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Dividend paid</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Issue of Bonus Shares </span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Reimbursement paid</span><br /><span>2. Director Sitting Fees</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Remuneration paid</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Reimbursement paid<br />
2. Director Sitting Fees </span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Remuneration paid</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1. Reimbursement paid<br />
2. Director Sitting Fees </span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Dividend paid</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Dividend paid</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Rent Expense</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Remuneration paid</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Remuneration paid</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Remuneration paid</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Remuneration paid</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Rent Expense</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Remuneration paid </span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Miscellaneous Expense</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>Professional Charges</span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1.Borrowings<br />
2.Trade payables<br />
3. Other financial liabilities </span>
</span>

   
   
   <span>
<span>1.Borrowings<br />
2.Trade payables<br />
3. Other financial liabilities </span>
</span>
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